
 

 

 
 
Committee: 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2015 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on 27th November and 8th December 2014 (previously circulated).  
  
3. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by members of interests in respect of items on this agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
4. Items of urgent business authorised by the Chairman  
 
5. Corporate Health and Safety Arrangements and Members' Responsibilities (Pages 1 

- 26) 
 
6. Officer Employment Procedure Rules (Pages 27 - 36) 
 
7. Human Resources Policy Development and Review (Pages 37 - 83) 
 
8. Recruitment for On-call Fire-fighters at Lancaster Fire Station (Pages 84 - 93) 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Paul Gardner (Chairman), David Smith (Vice-Chairman), Shirley Burns, 



 

 

Caroline Jackson, Jane Parkinson, Margaret Pattison and Sylvia Rogerson 
 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Tony Anderson, Keith Budden, Melanie Forrest, Janet Hall, Kathleen Graham, 

Billy Hill and Ian Pattison 
 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Peter Baines, Democratic Services - telephone 01524 582074 or e-mail 

pbaines@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

 
MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Monday 26th January 2015.   

 



 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE  
 

Corporate Health and Safety Arrangements and 
Members’ Responsibilities 

3 February 2015 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Health & Housing) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To brief members on their responsibilities for health and safety and to outline the council’s 
current arrangements. 
 

This report is public.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That this report be noted. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report follows a request that the Committee be informed of Members’ role 

and responsibility for health and safety. 
 

1.2 The training currently being delivered to our managers and supervisors (an 
Institution of Occupational Safety & Health award) defines three broad areas 
of health and safety responsibility:  legal, moral and financial.  The Health & 
Safety Executive, the regulator, will primarily be concerned with legal 
compliance.  Our elected members, management and staff will however be 
equally concerned with moral and financial provisions in the balance of getting 
health, safety and welfare provision and performance right.  
 

1.3 The Health and Safety at Work etc., Act 1974 and regulations made under it 
provide the legal framework for the council’s responsibilities.  There are 
general legal duties and specific requirements, the latter being the focus of 
various sets of regulations dealing with control of chemicals, provision and 
use of equipment, working at heights, accident reporting, etc.  
 

1.4 It is inevitable that despite all care and attention in the workplace accidents 
can and will happen.  The legal minimum standard in practice is that the 
council must do everything “reasonably practicable” to protect the health, 
safety and welfare of employees, customers and other people who come into 
contact with or are affected by our activities.  This means doing what it is 
technically possible to do (‘practicable’) within the limits of what is justifiably 
affordable across the sector and feasible to implement without preventing the 
council from being able to deliver necessary services (‘reasonable’). 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



2.0 Responsibilities of elected members for health and safety 
 
2.1 The statement of this council’s elected members’ responsibility for health and 

safety can be found in the terms of reference of Personnel Committee in the 
Constitution Part 3 paragraph 6.2:  “Be responsible for Health and Safety 
policy”.  
 

2.2 Legal responsibilities to comply with health and safety legal requirements fall 
to the council as a body and, where they may also fall to individuals, primarily 
to the Chief Executive and the relevant Management Team member 
according to who may be legally defined as the council’s ‘controlling mind’ for 
individual cases of operational health and safety.  Some responsibilities for 
compliance with health & safety legal requirements are delegated to 
managers and supervisors.  Separately, individual employees are under a 
legal duty to cooperate with and follow the council’s health and safety 
requirements in their working practices and adhere to safety controls.  The 
Health & Safety Executive (HSE) is the regulator for health and safety 
compliance by the local government sector, in the same way (and not to be 
confused with) the council’s own Environmental Health role as health and 
safety regulator for local businesses. 

 
2.3 Guidance on health and safety matters for elected members can be found in 

this document:  ‘Think about health and safety – What elected members of 
local authorities need to know’ (Institution of Occupational Safety & Health, 
2009) which forms Appendix 1.  It is proposed that, following the meeting, a 
briefing note will be prepared for elected members on health and safety 
reflecting key local considerations informed by this document. 

 
2.4 Members will wish to be informed and assured about standards of health and 

safety compliance, i.e. is the council doing everything it can reasonably be 
expected to do to comply with the law and look after its people.  Members will 
also be interested in the moral and financial dimensions of safeguarding 
health, safety and welfare standards.  Officers will verbally brief the meeting 
about current research into how other councils are measuring performance 
and the information they are presenting to elected members.   

 
3.0 Current health and safety arrangements 
 
3.1 The council’s management and control structure for health and safety has the 

Chief Executive supported by the Chief Officer (Health & Housing) as 
Management Team member leading corporately on health and safety.  
Through Environmental Health, the Corporate Safety Officer – who is the 
council’s legally required ‘competent person’ – is responsible for providing 
support in terms of policy, guidance and advice, council-wide coordination.  
Given the wide range of safety-concerned work activities operated at and 
from White Lund Depot, the post of Safety Manager has been created to 
provide effective local control and coordination, reporting to the Chief Officer 
(Environment).   

 
3.2 An illustrative list of the council’s current health and safety arrangements is 

provided in Appendix 2. 
 
3.3 A revision of the council’s Safety Policy is currently being finalised for 

consultation and approval.  This will clearly define roles and responsibilities 
reflecting the wide-ranging changes we have seen in the council’s 

Page 2



management, staffing and assignment of duties.  It will also pave the way for 
work to strengthen our health and safety management and assurance. 

 
3.4 Following their return to work after an extended period of illness, the council’s 

Safety Officer is reviewing the draft corporate Health & Safety Strategy to 
reflect the revision of HSE guidance note HS(G)65 on management of health 
and safety at work, with the aim of strengthening health and safety 
management in practice; competency; performance; and culture.  Already the 
council has some work in hand: 

 
• Rolling out IOSH Managing Safely training with excellent results, feedback 

and post-course activity by attending staff (which have included union 
safety officials) 

• Strengthening property and facilities management arrangements, 
including the establishment of a compliance officer post and system within 
Property Group – leading to good progress on some of the ‘big four’ 
property-related issues:  fire safety, asbestos, legionella, and contractor 
control 

• Developing mechanisms for monitoring, testing, reporting and auditing 
safety compliance  

 
4.0 Engaging with employees on health and safety 
 
4.1 Matters of health and safety within the council are routinely considered 

operationally within services and corporately by Management Team.  
Information and consultation with staff takes place both within services on 
single-service matters, and through the Joint Consultative Committee on 
Health and Safety featuring union health and safety representatives and the 
chair of personnel Committee.  

 
4.2 White Lund Depot has its own dedicated works safety committee.  Health and 

safety matters are also regularly raised to the works council and in the service 
managers meetings which feature Health & Safety in every meeting. 

 
4.3 Staff consultation and engagement is supported by Unison and Unite having 

formally appointed and trained health and safety representatives within our 
workforce.  GMB union member employees rely more on external regional 
support on matters of health and safety. 

 
5.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 This report is presented as a briefing and to facilitate members’ consideration 

of the information they wish to receive in future on matters of health and 
safety. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
This report directly concerns and supports health and safety.  No other implications. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Council’s health and safety legal responsibilities are identified in this report but there are 

Page 3



no new legal implications arising from reference to them. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Whilst the council’s health and safety legal responsibilities are addressed in this information 
no new financial implications have been identified. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Resources: 
There are no HR matters directly relating to this report. 
Information Services: 
No implications have been identified. 
Property: 
Whilst the council’s health and safety legal responsibilities are addressed in this information 
no new Property implications have been identified. 
Open Spaces: 
Whilst the council’s health and safety legal responsibilities are addressed in this information 
no new open spaces implications have been identified. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
In the absence of the Monitoring Officer the Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted 
and has no observations to make on this report. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
1. Health & safety at Work etc. Act 1974. 
2. Health & Safety Executive guidance note 

HS(G)65 ‘Managing for health and 
safety’. 

Contact Officer: Nick Howard, 
Environmental Health Manager 
Telephone:  01524 582734 
E-mail: nhoward@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: PC24 

 
 

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Appendix 2 

Outline of council’s current health & safety supporting arrangements 
(as at January 2015) 
 

Please note that the following list of current health and safety arrangements and activities is 
provided for outline information and not exhaustive. 
 

Corporate Safety function (Environmental Health, Health & Housing) 

• Safety policy 
• Guidance 
• Advice 
• Information to Management Team / service managers on changes in legislation 
• Accident and near-miss investigation, horizon-scanning and networking with other 

organisations to identify learning points and develop in-house good practice (focussed on 
activities of services other than Environmental Services) 

• Assists health & safety function in Environmental Services as appropriate 
• Input to council-run event safety (e.g. public events on the Promenade) 
• Coordination of ‘eyecare’ provision to display screen users 
• Secretariat for the Joint Consultative Health & Safety Committee 
• Liaison with the council's risk manager to help mitigate losses or claims 
• Maintains central record of notifiable accidents and ensure compliance with the requirements of 

RIDDOR 
• Point of liaison between council and Health and Safety Executive 
• Assists in developing and maintaining formalised staff safety liaison arrangements 
• Assists Human Resources as appropriate to facilitate effective occupational health function 

White Lund Depot (environmental Services) 

• Dedicated Health & Safety / Fleet Manager and an assisting officer – coordination, guidance, 
advice, accident and near-miss investigation, hazard report procedures and solutions, horizon-
scanning and networking with other organisations to identify learning points and develop in-
house good practice (dedicated primarily to Environmental Services work activities) 

• Works safety committee 
• Service management and works council meetings which both consider safety issues regularly 
• Safety inspections programmes: 

o Scheduled workplace inspections 
o Regular programme of ad-hoc inspections, new business sites inspected/risk assessed 
o On-site inspections (e.g. at location highways works are being undertaken) 
o Supervisors weekly ad-hoc inspections of individuals, vehicles, working practices 
o Equipment inspections programme (e.g. ladders) 

• In-service training 
• Toolbox talks arrangements 
• Health and safety manuals in every refuse collection and Repairs & Maintenance Service 

vehicle 
• Driver assessments, driving licence checking 
• Special arrangements: 

o Banksmen supervising reversing vehicles 
o Abrasive wheels training and inspection 

• Assistance to Corporate Safety function 

 

  

Page 25



Municipal property (Property Group, resources) 

• Municipal premises provision and management, repair and maintenance, physical security 
measures 

• Establishing compliance management system for municipal (i.e. council operated and 
occupied) buildings and land 

• Fire safety – risk assessment, training for Property Group staff, provision and testing of safety 
systems / equipment / egress, fire warden staffing (currently each service nominates fire 
wardens who liaise with Property Group wardens in evacuation situations) 

• Asbestos identification, control, monitoring and remediation 
• Legionella testing and control 

Human Resources (Governance) 

• Pre-employment medicals (screened on paper or full medical) 
• Health surveillance: 

o Hearing 
o Respiratory function 
o Skin irritation / sensitivity 
o Hand-arm vibration 

• Vaccinations (e.g. against hepatitis) 
• Coordination, monitoring and reporting of sickness absence management  
• Early access to physiotherapy to reduce sickness absence due to musculo-skeletal disease  
• Coordination of employee referral to specialist occupational health support 
• Occupational health participation in Toolbox Talks (e.g. hand-arm vibration) 
• Coordination of safety training delivery in the Corporate Training Programme (see separate 

section below on Training)  
• Well-being programme promoting positive physical and mental health 

Training (coordinated by Human Resources, and often delivered by or through the Health & 
Safety Manager from Environmental Services) 

Recently delivered training 

• IOSH Managing Safely four day programme for managers 
• Manual Handling  
• Asbestos Awareness 
• COSHH Awareness 
• Emergency First Aid at Work 
• First Aid at Work 
• Fire Warden training 
• Legionnaires Disease Awareness 
• IOSH – Managing Safely 
• Ladder Safety 
• Personal Safety 
• Reversing Assistance 

Central Control (Health & Housing) 

• Lone worker safety automated logging and alerting system 

Democratic Services 

• Maintains arrangements for health and safety to be properly and fully considered during report-
writing and decision-making 

Page 26



 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE   
 
 

OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES 
3rd February 2015 

 
Report of the Monitoring Officer 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable the Committee to consider a report on constitutional matters to be presented to 
Council in March.   
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the report be noted.  Any comments or recommendations made by 

the Committee will be included in the report to Council.  
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Monitoring Officer is responsible for keeping the Council’s Constitution 

under review, and, as part of this exercise, has noted that the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 Section 6 of the Constitution are in 
need of revision to ensure that they comply with statutory requirements and 
meet the needs of the Council.    

1.2 Accordingly, the Monitoring Officer has prepared amended Rules, for 
consideration by Council for inclusion in the Constitution for the next 
municipal year.  This report gives the Committee an opportunity to note the 
recommended revised Rules and consequent amendment to the Terms of 
Reference of this Committee, and to make any comments prior to 
consideration by Council. 

 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 The draft report to Council and revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

are appended to this report. 
 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 This report is presented to the Committee by way of consultation.   
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

Agenda Item 6Page 27



 
None directly arising from this report. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None directly arising from this report. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None directly arising from this report.  
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Resources: 
As set out in the draft report to Council 
 
Information Services: 
None 
Property: 
None 
Open Spaces: 
None 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
As set out in the draft report to Council. 
 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
As set out in the draft report to Council. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor 
Telephone:  01524 582025 
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 28



DRAFT 

COUNCIL  
 
 

OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES 
4th March 2015 

 
Report of the Monitoring Officer 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable Council to consider revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules for inclusion in 
the Constitution, and a consequent amendment to the Terms of Reference of the Personnel 
Committee.  
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules appended to this 

report be approved for inclusion in the Constitution. 
 
(2) That, subject to the approval of recommendation (1) above, paragraph 

6.6 of the terms of reference of the Personnel Committee in Part 3 
Section 6 of the Constitution be amended to read: ”(a) On the 
appointment of a Head of Paid Service by Council, to undertake such 
role as may be requested by Council,  and (b) to be responsible for the 
appointment of other JNC Chief Officer posts.” 

     
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Monitoring Officer is responsible for keeping the Council’s Constitution 

under review, and, as part of this exercise, has noted that the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 Section 6 of the Constitution are in 
need of revision to ensure that they comply with statutory requirements and 
meet the needs of the Council.    
 

1.2 Accordingly, the Monitoring Officer has prepared amended Rules, for 
consideration by Council for inclusion in the Constitution for the next 
municipal year.   
 
 

1.3 It should be noted that, inevitably, some of the provisions in the amended 
Rules apply specifically to the Council’s Chief Officers and in particular to 
those Chief Officers who are designated as statutory officers - the Head of 
Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer.  Whilst the 
Monitoring Officer, as the Chief Officer responsible for the Constitution, has 
drafted the amended Rules, advice has also been taken from the Human 

Page 29



Resources and Organisational Development Manager.  Further, the Rules 
adopted by other local authorities have been examined and followed as 
examples of good practice.    

 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 The Council is required by law to have Procedure Rules or Standing Orders 

which cover the matters prescribed in the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
Regulations 1993 and the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
Regulations 2001.  The revised Officer Employment Procedure Rules are 
drafted to meet the requirements of those Regulations in relation to staffing 
matters, and to that extent the contents of the Rules are defined by the 
Regulations.  It should be noted that the law require the Council to designate 
an officer as Head of Paid Service.  In this Council, as in many other 
Councils, it is the Chief Executive who is designated the Head of Paid 
Service, and to that extent the two terms are interchangeable.  

 
2.2. Whilst the Regulations provide for full Council to appoint a Head of Paid 

Service, they do not prescribe the arrangements a Council makes for elected 
members to select an appointee for recommendation to Council.  Nor do they 
prescribe which member body should be responsible for the appointment of 
other Chief Officers.   

 
2.3 Currently, the Rules provide for the Personnel Committee to make a 

recommendation to Council for the appointment of a Head of Paid Service, 
and for Personnel Committee to appoint other Chief Officers.  However, the 
Personnel Committee comprises only seven members of Council, and 
Council may feel that for such an important appointment as that of Head of 
Paid Service/ Chief Executive, there should a wider elected member input, 
perhaps involving Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committee as well as 
Personnel Committee.  It will be necessary for there to be a Committee which 
will make a recommendation to Council on the appointment.  However, it 
would perhaps be preferable for Council to consider the most appropriate 
arrangements at the time of each appointment.  Rule 3(a) has therefore been 
redrafted to enable this.  

 
2.4  It is considered that  this proposed amendment to Rule 3 (a) would ensure a 

wider involvement of members in the recruitment process for the Head of 
Paid Service, whilst giving Council the flexibility to make such arrangements 
as it considers are appropriate at the time. . 

 
2.5 If this recommendation is approved, a consequent amendment to the Terms 

of Reference of the Personnel Committee would be required to reflect that the 
Committee would undertake such role in the appointment of a Head of Paid 
Service as directed by Council, whilst still appointing to other JNC Chief 
Officer posts.     

 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 A draft of this report was submitted to the Personnel Committee at its meeting 

on the 3rd February 2015 and     ……….. 
 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 The Rules must meet the requirements of the Local Authorities (Standing 

Page 30



Orders) Regulations 1993 and the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
(England) Regulations 2001, and to that extent no options are presented on 
the general substance of the Rules.  However, it is for Council to decide the 
arrangements it wishes to have in place for the member body responsible for 
making a recommendation to Council for the appointment of a Head of Paid 
Service.  Officers would recommend the amendments set out in the attached 
draft Rules.     

 
5.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 Council is recommended to approve revised Officer Employment Procedure 

Rules to replace those currently in Part 4 Section 6 of the Constitution. 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
None directly arising from this report.  The Rules reflect the relevant Standing Orders 
Regulations, and these and the Council’s recruitment procedures are designed to ensure  
compliance with equality and diversity principles.  
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The revised Rules reflect the requirements of the relevant Regulations. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Resources: 
The revised Rules provide the framework within which the Council will operate. Any detailed 
processes that are developed to deal with individual cases will comply with the law and 
follow HR best practice. The Council will also ensure that any arrangements that are 
developed comply with the provisions of National Frameworks and Conditions of Service for 
Chief Executives and Chief Officers. 
 
Information Services: 
None 
Property: 
None 
Open Spaces: 
None 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.  It should be 
noted that, as set out in paragraph 1.3 of the report, the Rules apply specifically to the 
Section 151 Officer in her role as such and as a Chief Officer   
 

Page 31



MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The report has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer as the officer responsible for 
advising on the Constitution, and again it should be noted that the Rules apply specifically to 
the Monitoring Officer. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Mrs S Taylor 
Telephone:  01524 582025 
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

Page 32



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION 

 

[DRAFT January 2015] Page 47 [Part 4, Rules of Procedure, Section 6 (Officers)] 

Part 4, Section 6 
Officer Employment Procedure Rules 
 
1. RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT  
 

(a) Declarations 
 
(i) The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for appointment as an 

officer to state in writing whether they or their partner are the parent, grandparent, 
child, stepchild, adopted child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or 
niece of or in a continuing close personal relationship with an existing councillor or 
officer of the Council; or of the partner of such persons. 
 

(ii) No candidate so related to a councillor or an officer will be appointed without the 
authority of the relevant Chief Officer or an officer nominated by him/her. 

 
(b) Seeking support for appointment 

 
(i) Subject to sub-paragraph (iii), the Council will disqualify any applicant who directly 

or indirectly seeks the support of any councillor or officer for any appointment with 
the Council.  The content of this paragraph will be included in any recruitment 
information 
 

(ii) Subject to sub-paragraph (iii), no Councillor will seek support for any person for any 
appointment as an officer with the Council.   
 

(iii) Nothing in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) will preclude a Councillor or officer from giving 
a written reference for a candidate for submission with an application for 
appointment 

 
2. RECRUITMENT OF HEAD OF PAID SERVICE AND CHIEF OFFICERS  
 

(1) Where it is proposed to appoint the Head of Paid Service or a Chief Officer  and it is not 
proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from among existing officers, the Council 
will: 

  
(a) draw up a statement specifying: 

 
(i) the duties of the officer concerned (the job description); and 
 
(ii) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be appointed (the 

person specification); 
 

(b) make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to bring it to the 
attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it; and 

 
(c) make arrangements for a copy of the statements mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) above to 

be sent to any person on request. 
 

(2)  Where a post has been advertised as provided in sub-paragraph (1)(b) above, all qualified 
applicants for the post shall be interviewed, or a short list of such qualified applicants shall be 
selected, and those included on the short list shall be interviewed.   
 

Page 33



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION 

 

[DRAFT January 2015] Page 48 [Part 4, Rules of Procedure, Section 6 (Officers)] 

(3) Where no qualified person has applied, further arrangements shall be made for advertisement 
in accordance with sub-paragraph 1(b) above  

 
 

3. APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 

(a) In making arrangements for the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, the Council will 
on each occasion designate an appropriate ad hoc Committee, constituted with regard to 
proportional representation, and including at least one member of Cabinet, to make a 
recommendation to Council on the appointment.   The Council will approve the appointment 
of the Head of Paid Service following the recommendation of such Committee.  In addition, 
in formulating the arrangements for the appointment, Council may request the involvement 
of the Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Personnel Committee at any 
stage of the process.  
 

(b) The Council will approve the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service following the 
recommendation of such dismissal by the Personnel Committee of the Council.  The 
Committee when making such a recommendation must include at least one member of the 
Cabinet.   

 
4. APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF CHIEF OFFICERS  

 
(a) The appointment of a Chief Officer will be made by the Personnel Committee, which, when 

making such appointment must include at least one member of the Cabinet. 
 

(b) The dismissal of a Chief Officer is the responsibility of the Personnel Committee.  The 
Committee when dismissing a Chief Officer must include at least one member of the 
Cabinet.   
 

 
5. OTHER OFFICERS  

 
(a) The function of appointment and dismissal of, and taking disciplinary action against any 

officer other than the Head of Paid Service or a Chief Officer is the responsibility of the 
Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) or his/her nominee, and, (save in respect of Deputy 
Chief Officers as defined in Section 2(8) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989), 
may not be discharged by councillors.  This is a requirement of the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001. 
 

(b) Any disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with the Council’s Disciplinary Policy and 
Procedure, as adopted from time to time. 
 

(c) Nothing in sub-paragraph (a) above shall prevent a person from serving as a member of 
any committee or sub-committee established by the Council to consider an appeal by an 
officer against any decision relating to the dismissal of, or taking disciplinary action against 
that officer. 

 
(d) Any appointment of an assistant to a political group shall be made in accordance with the 

wishes of that political group. 
 

 
6. CONSULTATION WITH CABINET MEMBERS 
 

No offer of an appointment or notice of dismissal  in relation to the appointment or dismissal  of  
the Head of Paid Service, a Chief Officer or a Deputy Chief Officer (as defined in Section2(8) of 

Page 34



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION 

 

[DRAFT January 2015] Page 49 [Part 4, Rules of Procedure, Section 6 (Officers)] 

the Local Government and Housing Act 1989) shall be given by the appointor or dismissor (as 
defined in the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001) until: 
 
(a) the appointor or dismissor has notified the Chief Officer (Governance) of the name of the 

person to be appointed or dismissed and any other particulars relevant to the appointment or 
dismissal  and the period within which any objection is to be made by the Leader on behalf of 
the Cabinet; and  
 

(b) the Chief Officer (Governance)  has notified every member of the Cabinet of the name of the 
person to be appointed or dismissed, and any other particulars relevant to the appointment or 
dismissal which the appointor or dismissor has notified to the Chief Officer (Governance), and 
the period within which any objection to the appointment or dismissal is to be made by the 
Leader on behalf of the Cabinet to the Chief Officer (Governance); and 
 

(c) either 
 
(i) the Leader has, within the period specified in the notice under sub-paragraph (b) notified  

the Chief Officer (Governance) that neither he/she nor any other member of the 
Cabinet has any objection to the appointment or dismissal;  
 

(ii)  the Chief Officer (Governance) has notified the appointor or dismissor that no objection 
was received within that period from the Leader; or  
 

(iii) the appointor or dismissor is satisfied that any objection received from the Leader within 
that period is not material or is not well-founded. 

 
 
8.    DISCIPLINARY ACTION – HEAD OF PAID SERVICE, MONITORING OFFICER AND CHIEF 

FINANCE OFFICER 
 

(a) No disciplinary action in respect of the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief 
Finance Officer (officer having responsibility for the purposes of Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 for the administration of the Council’s financial affairs), except action 
described in sub-paragraph (b) below may be taken by the Council or by a committee or 
sub-committee, a joint committee on which the Council is represented or any other person 
acting on behalf of the Council, other than in accordance with a recommendation in a report 
made by a designated independent person under regulation 7 of the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders)(England) Regulations 2001.    
 

(b) The action mentioned in subparagraph (a) above is suspension of the officer for the 
purpose of investigating the alleged misconduct occasioning the action and any such 
suspension must be on full pay and terminate no later than the expiry of two months 
beginning on the day on which the suspension takes effect.  

 
9.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION – HEAD OF PAID SERVICE AND CHIEF OFFICERS 
 

Subject to paragraph 8 above, the Personnel Committee has delegated authority to take 
disciplinary action against the Head of Paid Service and Chief Officers, and to dismiss Chief 
Officers on disciplinary grounds 
 
(a) Any proposal to dismiss the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance 

Officer must be approved by full Council. 
 

Page 35



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION 

 

[DRAFT January 2015] Page 50 [Part 4, Rules of Procedure, Section 6 (Officers)] 

(b) Where the Personnel Committee meets to consider the taking of disciplinary action against the 
Head of Paid Service or a Chief Officer, the Committee must include at least one member of 
the Cabinet.   

 
(c) The Investigating Committee for the purposes of the JNC Conditions of Service shall be the 

Personnel Committee.  That Committee must include at least one member of the Cabinet. 
 
 

 

10.  NO DIRECTIONS TO BE GIVEN TO PERSONS MAKING APPOINTMENTS OR TAKING 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 
Save as specifically provided for elsewhere in these Rules, neither the Council nor the Cabinet or 
Committee or Overview and Scrutiny meeting or individual Councillor, nor any other person shall 
directly or indirectly: 

 

(i) give directions to any person taking any step in relation to an appointment to a post in the 
paid service of the authority as to the identity of the person to be appointed; 

 

(ii) give directions about the taking of any disciplinary action in relation to a person in the paid 
service of the authority; or 

 

(iii) otherwise interfere with the making of such an appointment or the taking of disciplinary 
action. 

 
 

Page 36



 

 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE  
 

HR POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW 
 

3 February 2015 
 

Report of the HR & OD Manager 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To enable the Committee to consider and approve a number of Human Resources Policies 
and Procedures. 
 

This report is public. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
That subject to any further recommendation being brought to the Committee from the 
Joint Consultative Committee which meets on 3 February 2015 prior to this meeting, the 
Committee approve: 
 
1. The new Shared Parental Leave Policy and Procedure with future consequential 

changes to the existing Paternity/Partner Leave Policy. 
 

2. The new Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure. 
 

3. The amended Early Termination of Employment Policy. 
 

4. The new Flexible Working (Right to Request) Policy and Procedure with future 
consequential changes to the existing Council’s Family Leave Scheme. 
 

5. The amended Job Grading, Regrading and Appeals Procedure. 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 From time to time the council will develop procedures to support the management of its 

workforce related matters. 
 
1.2 The recognised trade unions have been consulted as part of the Joint Consultative 

Committee (JCC) at its meeting on 3 February 2015 prior to this meeting. Should there 
be any amendments to the attached draft documents proposed by the JCC, these will be 
presented to the Personnel Committee for its consideration.  In the event of any 
substantial changes to a Policy being proposed at the JCC meeting and /or further 
consultation required, it may be necessary to defer consideration to a future meeting of 
the Personnel Committee. 
 

2.0 Details 
 
2.1 The Council has developed a new Shared Parental Leave Policy and Procedure in light 

of impending legislative changes. 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 37



2.2 The Council has developed a new Probation and Appointment Review Policy and 
Procedure, to formalise and clarify existing practice with regard to new appointees.  
 

2.3 The existing Early Termination of Employment Policy and Arrangements has been 
 reviewed and amended as part of the ongoing policy and procedure review 
 arrangements. 

 
2.4 A revised Flexible Working (Right to Request) Policy and Procedure has been devised 

to formalise arrangements since the introduction of the expansion of the ‘Right to 
Request’ to all employees. 
 

2.5   The Job Grading, Regrading and Appeals Procedure has been amended to account for 
 revised job titles and service structures. 

 
 
3.0 Shared Parental Leave Policy and Procedure 
 
3.1 This new policy document has been developed in response to changed legislation which 

will allow greater flexibility for birth and adoptive parents, with regard to sharing of the 52 
weeks leave that is available after the birth or adoption of a child. 

 
3.2 Shared Parental Leave legislation replaces and expands upon the existing legislation 

regarding additional paternity leave (as outlined within the Paternity/Partner Leave 
Policy and Procedure) and is effective for births/placements after 5th April 2015. The 
Paternity/Partner Leave Policy will remain in place, until such time as no further 
applications can be made and/or there are no existing employees utilising Additional 
Paternity Leave, after which point it will be archived.  

 
3.3 The arrangements are complex and in line with other local councils it is proposed to 

offer the provision required under legislation. 
 

3.4 Section 2.5 SPLIT days 
Employees may work for up to 20 days without bringing the Shared Parental Leave to 
an end. These days are referred to as ‘Shared Parental Leave In Touch’ (SPLIT) days.   
 
The rate of pay an employee receives on a SPLIT day is a matter for employers. It has 
previously been agreed by JCC and Personnel Committee that Keeping in Touch (KIT) 
days, permissible under the Maternity Policy and also the Paternity/Paternity Leave 
Policy, should be paid at the employee’s normal hourly rate for any hours of work done 
on a KIT day.  
 
It is proposed therefore that the rate of pay for SPLIT days should be in line with those 
agreed for KIT days, namely the employee’s hourly rate of pay.  

  
 
4.0  Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure 

 
4.1 The Council has had a framework in place for a number of years to support and manage 

both individuals who are new to Lancaster City Council and individuals who have moved 
to a new role within the Council.  

 
4.2  The proposed Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure encompasses 

all current arrangements, as well as providing more detailed guidance to both managers 
and appointees in what they can reasonably expect within the Probation or Appointment 
Review Period.  

 

Page 38



5.0 Early Termination of Employment Policy and Arrangements 
 
 
5.1 Summary of Changes 
 
5.1.1 Section 8.0 - The introduction of a change to the way compulsory redundancy payments 

are calculated to bring them in line with the statutory formula. The current Council 
arrangements are that where an employee is made compulsorily redundant the payment 
is calculated using their actual weekly pay, even if this is above the statutory cap 
(currently £464.00 per week).  

 
5.1.2 This proposal will increase the differential in redundancy pay between the amount 

received if made compulsorily redundant and the amount received under VR.  As 
Members will be aware the majority of staff elect to depart under Voluntary Redundancy.  

 
5.1.3 By increasing the differential between the two amounts, which will particularly apply to 

higher paid staff, it is more likely that staff will elect for VR and it will be less attractive to 
staff to risk being made compulsorily redundant, where they retain the right to challenge 
their selection for redundancy at a later date. This approach should therefore further 
encourage staff to elect for VR, which disqualifies staff from later complaining against 
their selection for redundancy. 

 
5.1.4  Section 10.1 - The revised policy includes reference to the fact that the VR cap will 

automatically increase each year in line with any increases to the statutory calculation. 
 
5.1.5 Section 17.1 - The arrangements for re-employment of an ex-employee who elected to 

take VR have been amended, so that those staff departing on enhanced VR terms will 
not be considered for re-employment until 1 year has elapsed after their termination. 
There is no change to re-employment arrangements for staff departing on compulsory 
redundancy. 

 
5.1.6 Section 20.1 - Information on pension discretions is now within a separate document 
 
 
6.0 Flexible Working (Right to Request) Policy and Procedure 
 

The legislation covering the ‘Right to Request’ flexible working was expanded with effect 
from 1 July 2014 to allow all employees, regardless of the reason, to request to change 
their working commitment and to have that properly considered.  
 
Lancaster City Council had a pre-existing arrangement for requesting Flexible Working 
within the Family Leave Scheme, for those employees with caring responsibilities, in 
accordance with the previous legislation. Any recent requests received from employees 
have been considered in line with current legislation.  

 
6.1 Summary of Changes 
 
6.1.1 Section 12.0 - There is no right of appeal against a decision not to grant a flexible 

working request, however it is considered to be good practice to do so. In light of the 
significant expansion of the ‘Right to Request’ it is proposed that any appeals should be 
heard by the Chief Executive, due both to the likely increase in applications and in light 
of the need to comply with the statutory 3 month timescale. 

 
6.1.1  If agreed, the revised policy will replace the existing section with the Council’s Family 

Leave Scheme. The remaining policies contained in the Family Leave Scheme will be 
separated out into their constituent policies and published separately 

 
 
 
 

Page 39



7.0  Job Grading, Regrading and Appeals Procedure 
 
7.1 The document has been revised to take account of revised job titles and organisation 
 structure. The content of the documents other than this remain unchanged. 
 
7.2 The instance of grading appeals are low. However, the procedure that is in place is 

considered sound and offers Appellants a fair opportunity to have their arguments heard 
by an Appeal Panel made up of the Chief Executive and a Trade Union representative. 
No changes are therefore proposed to the existing arrangement. 

 
8.0 Options  
 
8.1 The options available to the Committee in respect of each Policy are to approve the 

appended document as drafted, to approve the document with amendments, or not to 
approve the document.  However, if substantial changes in respect of any Policy are 
proposed at the JCC meeting, it may be appropriate for consideration of that Policy to be 
deferred to a future meeting to enable officers to consider the proposed amendment in 
more detail and to consult further with the trade unions.  

 
9.0 Recommendations 
 
9.1 The Officer recommendation is that subject to consideration of any additional 

recommendations brought to the Committee from the JCC meeting on 3 February 2015 
the Committee approve:   

 
• The new Shared Parental Leave Policy and Procedure. 

 
• The new Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure. 

 
• The amended Early Termination of Employment Policy. 

 
• The new Flexible Working (Right to Request) Policy and Procedure and in doing 

so approve the changes to the existing Council’s Family Leave Scheme.  
 

• The amended Job Grading, Regrading and Appeals Procedure.  
 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
The Council is committed to good standards of employment practice, and it is felt that the 
amended policies and the new policies will augment our existing Human Resource 
Management arrangements. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
The policies will apply to all employees.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct implications as a result of this report.  
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The s151 Officer has been consulted and would add that sound, robust HR management 
practices also contribute to achieving value for money and improving the use of public funds. 

Page 40



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications directly arising from this report. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has nothing further to add. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None.   

Contact Officer: Stuart Hampson 
Telephone: 01524 582076 
E-mail: shampson@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 41



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  1 

 

 

 
 

Shared Parental Leave Policy and Procedure 
1.0 Scope 
 
This policy outlines the statutory right to take Shared Parental Leave (SPL) to care for a child 
due to be born or placed for adoption on or after 5th April 2015.  It also outlines notification 
requirements before a period of SPL and the entitlement to pay during SPL. 
 
SPL gives employees with caring responsibilities for babies or newly adopted children the 
opportunity to share up to 52 weeks of leave with their partner should they wish to do so by 
committing to end maternity or adoption leave and pay early.  The untaken balance of leave 
and pay can then be taken as SPL.  Parents taking SPL can take leave in separate blocks, 
returning to work in between blocks, and both parents can be on leave at the same time.    
Eligible employees are entitled to submit up to three notices to take a 'Period of Leave'. 
 
SPL will replace the existing entitlements of additional paternity leave and pay.  For parents 
with a baby due on or before 4 April 2015, the entitlement to additional paternity leave and 
additional statutory paternity pay will remain in place. 
 
These rights also apply to partnerships of the same sex and intended parents in a surrogacy 
arrangement. 
 
 
2.0 Entitlements 
 
2.1  Qualifying for Shared Parental Leave 
 
To be entitled to SPL, employees must: 

• be the mother, father, or main adopter of the child, or the partner of the mother or 
main adopter; 

• have, or share with the other parent, the main responsibility for the care of the child; 
• have at least 26 weeks' continuous service at the 15th week before the expected 

week of birth or at the week in which the main adopter was notified of having been 
matched for adoption with the child, known as the 'relevant week'; 

• still be in continuous employment until the week before any SPL is taken; 
• comply with the relevant notice and evidence requirements. 

 
In addition, the other parent must: 

• have at least 26 weeks' employment (employed or self-employed) out of the 66 
weeks prior to the relevant week; 

• have average weekly earnings of at least £30 during at least 13 of the 66 weeks prior 
to the relevant week. 

 
For the mother or main adopter to be entitled to SPL, they must be entitled to statutory 
maternity or adoption leave.  For the partner to be entitled to SPL, the mother or main 

Page 42



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  2 

 

adopter must be entitled to statutory maternity or adoption leave, or entitled to statutory 
maternity/adoption pay or maternity allowance. 
Employees must also follow the statutory notification and information requirements detailed 
in this policy. 
 
2.2 Amount and Timing of Shared Parental Leave 
 
SPL must be taken in weekly blocks and within a one year period beginning with the date of 
the baby's birth or the child's placement for adoption. 
 
The maximum of 52 weeks of SPL will be reduced by the number of weeks of maternity or 
adoption leave that have already been taken by the mother or main adopter, or the number 
of weeks of statutory maternity/adoption pay or maternity allowance already taken if the 
mother or main adopter is not entitled to statutory maternity/adoption leave. 
 
After the birth of a child it is compulsory for the mother to take two weeks of maternity leave, 
therefore in the majority of cases working parents will have the opportunity to split 50 weeks 
of SPL. 
 
SPL is in addition to the statutory right to two weeks of paternity leave for fathers and 
partners. Paternity leave must be taken in advance of any SPL.  Further information can be 
found in the Council’s Paternity/Partner Leave Policy and Procedure. 
 
2.3 Rights During Shared Parental Leave 
 
Salary will be replaced by Statutory Shared Parental Pay if the employee is eligible for it.  
 
Employees are entitled to receive all the other normal terms and conditions of the contract of 
employment, including annual holiday entitlement.    
 
2.3.1 Holiday Entitlement 
 
Annual leave continues to accrue as normal throughout any periods of SPL. 
 
Employees should aim to use their annual leave within the leave year it has been accrued, 
however, in agreement with their Chief Officer, they may carry forward a maximum of five 
days’ annual leave into the next leave year. 
 
Annual leave cannot be taken simultaneously with SPL.  Annual leave should be taken 
before any periods of SPL commence, or at the end of all SPL periods taken.  Normal 
approval procedures apply. 
 
Bank holidays that fall during any period of SPL absence will not be re-credited to the 
employee to be taken at a later date.  The only exception to this will be when the employee’s 
paid leave in any annual leave year, within the SPL period(s) falls below the statutory 
minimum  of 5.6 weeks per year as outlined in the Working Time Regulations.  
 
2.3.2 Pension 
 
Pension contributions will continue to be made by the Council during the period when the 
employee is in receipt of pay, including statutory maternity pay, maternity allowance or 
shared parental pay, but not during any period of unpaid maternity leave.  
 
 

Page 43



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  3 

 

 
2.3.3 Flexible Working Requests 
 
Full consideration will be given to requests from employees who, upon their return from SPL, 
wish to change their working pattern.  Employees should submit their requests as far in 
advance of their return date as practicable, to allow adequate time for the request to be fully 
considered and, where appropriate, the necessary arrangements put in place. 
 
Further information about flexible working can be found in the Council’s Family Leave 
Scheme. 
 
2.3.4 Childcare Vouchers 
 
Employees returning from SPL may wish to consider joining the Council’s Childcare Voucher 
Scheme, which provides a tax efficient way of assisting with childcare costs.  Further details 
about the scheme can be found on the HR intranet or by contacting the HR Team. 
 
2.3.5 Salary Sacrifice Schemes 
 
Employees taking part in any scheme that works on a salary sacrifice basis should consider 
how being in receipt of Shared Parental Pay, or nil pay, may affect their participation in the 
scheme.  Employees should contact the HR Team if more information is required. 
 
2.4 Shared Parental Pay 
 
In addition to the requirements regarding entitlement to leave outlined above, if an employee 
wishes to claim Shared Parental Pay (ShPP), average weekly earnings must be equal to or 
above the Lower Earnings Limit over the eight week period ending with the relevant week. 
 
A maximum of 39 weeks' ShPP is payable, and this will be reduced by the number of weeks 
of statutory maternity/adoption pay or maternity allowance that have already been taken by 
the mother or main adopter.  ShPP is a standard weekly rate set by the government each tax 
year, or 90% of normal weekly earnings if this is lower. 
 
Employees must follow the statutory notification and information requirements detailed below 
in Section 3. 
 
2.5 Contact During Shared Parental Leave 
 
The Council is entitled to make reasonable contact with employees during SPL.  This may 
be to discuss the employee’s plans to return to work, or perhaps any changes in the 
workplace.   The employee is also entitled to make reasonable contact with the Council, for 
example, to discuss any arrangements for the return to work. 
 
Employees may work for up to 20 days without bringing the SPL to an end, but work during 
SPL will not have the effect of extending the SPL period.  These days are referred to as 
‘Shared Parental Leave In Touch’ (SPLIT) days.  If an employee undertakes any work whilst 
on a SPLIT day, payment will be received at the normal rate of pay for the actual hours 
worked.  Employees are under no obligation to work during SPL, and the Council is under no 
obligation to offer work. 
 
The 20 SPLIT days available during SPL are in addition to the 10 ‘Keeping in Touch’ days 
available during Maternity and Adoption Leave. 
 

Page 44



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  4 

 

 
2.6 Fraudulent Claims 
 
If the Council suspects that fraudulent information may have been provided or where the 
Council has been informed by the HMRC that a fraudulent claim has been made, the Council 
may use the Disciplinary Policy and Procedure to investigate the matter further, which could 
lead to action up to and including dismissal. 
 
2.7 Change in Employee Circumstances 
 
It is possible that a parent’s circumstances may change after periods of SPL have been 
agreed.  This could prove difficult for the Council if the change is advised at short notice and 
arrangements to cover the post are already in place.  In such circumstances, the Council 
may decide to hold the employee to the agreed arrangements. 
 
 
3 Procedure 
 
Employees and managers should, where possible, have an informal discussion as soon as 
possible prior to employees giving formal notification of their intention to take SPL, for 
example, when the employee knows maternity/adoption leave is going to be taken, so that 
statutory entitlements to other types of leave and pay can be discussed, and to ensure that 
plans for any discontinuous periods of leave can be considered as early as possible. 
 
As the SPL provisions are complex, if an employee wishes to take SPL, the relevant 
procedures can be clarified with the HR Team to ensure that they are followed correctly.  If 
the employee wishes to have an informal discussion to understand this Policy and 
Procedure in more detail, they should contact their Service HR Partner to arrange this. 
 
3.1 Notice of Entitlement and Intention to take SPL and ShPP 
 
The Notice of Entitlement and Intention is a notice to the Council advising that the employee 
is entitled to take SPL and when they intend to take it.  The employee should aim to submit 
this as early as possible to their Service Manager to enable potential planning and cover 
arrangements in the Service area. 
 
Employees must notify the Council in writing at least eight weeks before the start date of the 
first period of SPL.  The written notice must contain the following information: 
 

• employee’s name and the other parent's name; 
• the start and end dates of the mother's or main adopter's maternity/adoption leave, or 

the start and end dates of the statutory maternity/adoption pay or maternity 
allowance period if the mother/main adopter is not entitled to statutory leave; 

• the expected date of birth/placement and the actual date of birth/placement if the 
written notice is given after the birth/placement; 

• the amount of SPL and ShPP available and an indication of how much each parent 
intends to take, which may be varied by a subsequent written notice signed by both 
parents; 

• an indication of the start and end dates of the periods of SPL and ShPP intended to 
be taken.  This indication is not binding and can be amended at a later date; 

• a signed declaration that the employee meets the conditions for entitlement to SPL, 
that the information provided is accurate and that he/she will notify the Council 
immediately if he/she ceases to meet the conditions for entitlement, such as no 
longer caring for the child. 

Page 45



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  5 

 

 
 
There must also be a signed declaration from the other parent containing: 
 

• their name, address and National Insurance number; 
• confirmation that they meet the employment and earnings conditions; 
• confirmation that they are the father/mother or partner of the father/mother of the 

child or civil partner or spouse of the employee; 
• confirmation that, at the time of the birth, they will share the main responsibility for 

the care of the child; 
• their consent to the amount of leave the employee intends to take; 
• confirmation that they will immediately inform the Council if they cease to satisfy the 

employment and earnings conditions; 
• consent for the employer to process the information in the partner’s declaration. 

 
3.2 Notice to End Statutory Maternity/Adoption Leave and Payments 
 
At the same time that a ‘Notice of Entitlement and Intention’ to take SPL is submitted, the 
mother/main adopter must give the Council a notice to end maternity/adoption leave and 
pay, giving at least eight weeks' notice of the date on which the leave and pay is to end, or 
the date on which pay is to end if they are not entitled to leave.  If the mother is only entitled 
to maternity allowance (and not maternity leave) her notice of curtailment must be submitted 
to Jobcentre Plus.  Her maternity allowance cannot be reinstated, so she is in effect giving 
consent for her partner to take the whole of any ShPP entitlement. 
 
A notice to end maternity/adoption leave and pay is usually binding, but may be revoked in 
the following circumstances: 
 

• if it becomes apparent that neither parent is entitled to SPL or ShPP; or 
• if the notice to end leave/pay was given before the birth/placement and is revoked up 

to six weeks following the birth; or 
• if the other parent dies. 

 
3.3 Formal Notice Requesting a ‘Period of Leave’ 
 
The Formal Notice is where the employee submits the actual details of the period of leave 
he/she intends to take. 
 
The first period of SPL may be identified and formally requested in the initial notice of 
entitlement and intention to take SPL.  Employees are entitled to submit a maximum of three 
formal notices to take a ‘Period of Leave’. 
 
Each notice requesting a ‘Period of Leave’ must be given at least eight weeks before the 
start of a ‘Period of Leave’, stating the dates of the leave and the dates on which ShPP will 
be claimed, if applicable. 
 
If the first notice requesting a ‘Period of Leave’ is given prior to the birth of a child, the notice 
may express the start date in relation to the date of birth, for example “starting two weeks 
after the baby is born for a period of four weeks”. 
 
3.4 Confirmation of SPL and ShPP 
 
If a continuous period of leave is requested in a notice for a ‘Period of Leave’, employees will 
be entitled to take that ‘Period of Leave’ and this will be confirmed in writing. 

Page 46



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  6 

 

 
If more than one ‘Period of Leave’ is requested in a notice, i.e., discontinuous periods of 
leave, the Council will seek to accommodate the request but this cannot be guaranteed. The 
Service Chief Officer will discuss the request with the employee to determine if it can be 
accommodated.  The Service Chief Officer will have to consider operational factors in 
making a decision on such a request, for example, if the post has already been temporarily 
filled as a result of the period of maternity/adoption leave.  The Service Chief Officer is 
advised to contact the relevant HR Partner for further guidance. 
 
If the discontinuous leave request cannot be accommodated, there may be an alternative 
pattern of leave which can be agreed, or the request may be refused. The Council's decision 
will be confirmed in writing. 
 
If no agreement is reached within 14 calendar days of the notice requesting the ‘Periods of 
Leave’ being submitted the employee can: 

• take the discontinuous periods of leave requested in one continuous block, beginning 
on the original start date; or 

• withdraw the request within 15 calendar days of the request being submitted.  If the 
request is withdrawn in these circumstances it will not count as one of the three 
formal requests; or 

• take the continuous block starting on a new date, as long as the new date is later 
than the original start date, and the Council is notified of the new date within 19 
calendar days. 

 
3.5 Varying a Booked ‘Period of Leave’ 
 
If an employee wishes to vary or cancel a booked period of SPL, he/she is entitled to submit 
a request providing he/she provides written notice of at least eight weeks before any period 
of leave is due to commence.  An employee may: 

• vary the start and/or end date, or cancel the leave; or 
• vary or cancel the amount of leave requested; or 
• request that a single period of leave becomes a discontinuous period of leave, or vice 

versa. 
 
A variation will count as one of the three formal notices requesting a ‘Period of Leave’, apart 
from circumstances such as the baby being born early or the Council requesting the dates to 
be amended. 
 
3.6 Evidence Requirements 
 
The Council may request a copy of the child's birth certificate and the name and address of 
the other parent's employer. 
 
In the case of adoption, the Council may request the name and address of the other parent's 
employer, along with evidence confirming the following: 

• the name and address of the adoption agency; 
• the date that the main adopter was notified of having been matched for adoption with 

the child; 
• the date on which the adoption agency expects to place the child with the family. 

 
Any such request will be made by the Council within 14 days of receiving the ‘Notice of 
Entitlement and Intention’ to take SPL and ShPP.  Employees must respond to the request 
for evidence within 14 days, or within 14 days of the birth of the child if the request was 
made before the child was born.  

Page 47



 

G:Master Policies/Shared Parental Leave Policy Draft – 03.02.15  7 

 

If a birth certificate has not yet been issued, employees must sign a declaration stating that 
fact along with the date and location of the child's birth.  If the other parent has no employer, 
this must also be declared. 
 
In some circumstances, the Council may choose to write to the employer of the other parent 
for clarification on information provided. 
 
3.7 Returning from Shared Parental Leave 
 
If an employee wishes to return early from SPL, or extend the period of the SPL, the Council 
must be notified at least 8 weeks before both the original end date and the new end date. 
 
If an employee returns to work immediately after a period of SPL, which together with any 
statutory maternity/adoption leave taken to care for the same child, was 26 weeks or less, 
the employee will return to work in the same job.  
 
If an employee returns to work from a period of SPL, which together with any maternity/ 
adoption leave taken to care for the same child, was more than 26 weeks, the employee will 
normally be entitled to return to the job in which he/she was employed before the absence.  
If that is not reasonably practicable, a similar role will be offered on no less favourable terms 
and conditions. 
 
Employees will not lose the right to return to work if they do not follow the correct notification 
procedures, however, the Council may take appropriate disciplinary action if they fail to 
return to work at the end of the SPL period. 
 
In the event that an employee is unable to return to work at the end of the SPL due to ill 
health, the Council's normal sickness absence rules, procedures and payments will apply.  
For further information, employees should refer to the Sickness Absence Policy and 
Procedure. 
 
 
4 Further Information 
 
Any questions relating to this Policy or Procedure, of further guidance on issues connected 
with SPL can be obtained from the Service HR Partner. 
 
 
5 Review 
 
This policy will be reviewed two years following implementation, or earlier in the event of 
further changes in legislation. 

Page 48



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

 

 
 
 

Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure 
 
1.0 Scope 
 
1.1 The Council’s Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure applies to all newly 

appointed employees and to existing employees who have taken on a new role within the 
Council. Both will be hereafter referred to as the ‘appointee’. The Probation and 
Appointment Review Policy and Procedure forms part of the contract of employment.   

 
1.2 The exceptions to this are the Chief Officer positions for whom separate arrangements are 

in place.   
 
1.3 The Probation and Appointment Review Policy and Procedure does not apply to casual 

workers.  
 
 
2.0 Objectives and Principles 
 
2.1 Lancaster City Council recognises the need to support and develop new appointees to 

achieve their full potential.  The Probation/Appointment Review Period allows the Council to 
assess the capabilities and conduct of each appointee and allows the appointee to decide 
whether or not the job is suitable for them. 

 
2.2 All appointees must be clear about the standard of work expected during the course of their 

employment. An up to date job description and person specification provides a knowledge 
and skills framework for each post, and will be used in conjunction with regular interaction 
during the Probation / Appointment Review Period between the manager and appointee. 

 
2.3 The Council recognises the link that can develop between a poor induction and Probation / 

Appointment Review Period and poor performance in the role. The Council is committed to 
ensuring an effective induction and Probation/Appointment Review Period to avoid 
performance management issues arising later in employment. 

 
2.4 Whilst some appointees may be recruited or promoted from within the organisation, it is still 

necessary to monitor the effectiveness of internally appointed employees and assist them 
in achieving the required standards of performance in a new post.  The Council is therefore 
committed to the provision of an Appointment Review Period for internal recruits, which 
shadows the Probation Procedure to assist the appointee in achieving the required 
standards in their new role. 

 
2.5 The objectives of this Policy are: 
 

� To ensure that new appointees are supported in a structured way during their Probation/ 
Appointment Review Period. 
 

� To provide line managers with a framework and guidance to assess the skills, conduct, 
performance and attendance of appointees, before deciding whether or not to confirm their 
appointment. 

Page 49



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

 
� To ensure that before the appointee is confirmed as successfully completing their 

Probation/Appointment Review Period they have reached the required standard of 
performance expected for that role. 
 

� To ensure there is a consistent, supportive and fair approach to dealing with issues that 
arise during the Probation/Appointment Review Periods, in line with legislative guidelines 
and best practice. 

 
� Where appointees under Probation / Appointment Review are unable to reach a good 

standard of performance, to deal with any concerns in an appropriate and timely manner.  
 
2.6 The following principles apply to the Council’s procedures for dealing with matters of 

concern that arise during the Probation / Appointment Review Period: 
 

� Application of the procedure will be fair, prompt, impartial and consistent, and will be 
applied without discrimination.   

 
� Action will be taken as soon as problems are identified. Where appropriate and if 

timescales allow, the appointee may be given more time to meet the requirements of the 
role and provided with further support.   

 
� Appointees are encouraged to raise, at an early point, any concerns they might have during 

their Probation / Appointment Review Period. The Council will in return take all reasonable 
and practicable steps to assist the employee. 

 
� Where it is apparent that the appointee is unable to reach the required standards of 

performance the matter will be handled appropriately and without unnecessary delay. 
 
 
3.0 Responsibilities 
 
3.1 Appointees’ responsibilities: 
 

All appointees have a contractual responsibility to work to the required standard and to 
achieve a level of performance which is prescribed by and acceptable to the Council.  
Appointees therefore have a responsibility to: 

 
� demonstrate their suitability for the post which they are appointed to; 

 
� bring to the attention of their line manager, at the earliest opportunity, any difficulties they 

are experiencing, or concerns they may have; 
 
� raise any issues outside of work which may affect their performance with their line 

manager, as soon as possible; 
 
� raise with their line manager any need for training, development or support, which they 

believe to be necessary in order for them to fulfil the requirements of the role; 
 

� individuals newly appointed to Lancaster City Council must attend the Council’s Corporate 
Induction and undertake any mandatory training required for the post; 

 
� co-operate fully with the Council’s Probation and Appointment Review Policy and 

Procedure where performance falls short of the required standards. 
 
 
 

Page 50



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

 
3.2 Management responsibilities: 
 

Managers are responsible for actively managing and monitoring Probation / Appointment 
Review, and will be supported by Human Resources (HR).  It is essential that managers 
proactively assess and support employees during these key first months of a new role.  
 
Probation should not be viewed by line managers as a form filling exercise that only needs 
to be considered at specific intervals during the Probation/Appointment Review Period. 
Rather the Probation/Appointment Review Period should be viewed as a clear opportunity 
for line managers to shape and develop the post holder.  
 
Managers should therefore ensure they communicate what is expected of their appointee 
on a regular basis during the Probation/Appointment Review Period. This may be through 
regular one to one meetings, team meetings or briefings, training sessions, etc., which will 
form the basis of support offered to the appointee.  
 
Managers have a responsibility to: 

 
� establish standards of performance, responsibilities and objectives that are consistent with 

the position and in line with the job description; 
 
� communicate the required standards, responsibilities and objectives of the post to the 

appointee; 
 

� be available for advice and supervision with the appointee, when required; 
 

� keep written notes of 1:1 meetings and supervision sessions; 
 

� ensure that the appointee is effectively inducted locally within the service area and their 
immediate team; 

 
� ensure that the appointee attends Corporate Induction and all mandatory relevant courses, 

including any online e-learning that is assigned; 
 

� promptly hold formal Probation/Appointment Review meetings within the first week, and by 
the end of the third and sixth month anniversary of their appointment 
 

� fully complete all required paperwork and send to HR in a timely fashion; 
 
� take action, where necessary, to resolve any issues at an early stage; 
 

3.3 HR responsibilities: 
 

The HR Team are responsible for providing advice and support to managers and 
employees during the Probation/Appointment Review Period, as required. 

 
HR will: 

 
� provide advice and guidance to managers, appointees and trade union representatives on 

the correct implementation of the policy and procedure; 
 
� ensure that managers treat all new appointees in a fair and equitable manner through the 

consistent application of this policy and procedure; 
 
� attend formal meetings as outlined in the procedure; 
 

Page 51



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

� issue three and six month formal review reminders to line managers; 
 
� confirm in writing to the appointee the outcome of the Probationary/Appointment Review 

Period; 
 
� keep records in line with the Data Protection Act. 

 
 
4.0  The distinction between a Probation Review and an Appointment Review 
 
4.1 All appointees who are new to Lancaster City Council are subject to a six month Probation 

Period.  
 
4.2 Appointees who are new to Lancaster City Council, but who have worked previously in 

Local Government or within a body covered by the Local Government Modification Order 
are also subject to the six month Probation Period, as they are new to Lancaster City 
Council.  Whilst suitability for the role must be established, this does not affect any other 
rights to continuous service e.g. for redundancy purposes.  

 
4.3 Where an appointee with previous Local Government service fails to establish their 

suitability for the role their employment will be terminated with the appropriate notice. 
 
4.4 Existing Lancaster City Council appointees who have transferred internally from another 

role within the Council are subject to a six month Appointment Review Period. When issues 
arise during the Appointment Review Period managers should handle these in line with this 
procedure. Should the required improvements not be made, the matter should be 
progressed to Stage 2 of the Capability and Performance Improvement Policy and 
Procedure. 

 
 
5.0 Temporary Staff 
 
5.1 Appointees on contracts of six months or longer will be required to complete a full Probation 

Review period. 
 
5.2 The successful completion of a Probation Review Period by a temporary appointee will not 

automatically confirm permanent employment on that individual.  
 
5.3 Where an individual is on a temporary contract of less than six months, the Probation 

Review Period will span the whole period of employment.  If the temporary contract was to 
be extended, the Probation Review Period would continue in line with the procedure until 
such time as they have met the probation requirements. 

 
5.4 All reviews should be completed in a timely fashion, in line with the dates outlined in this 

Policy and Procedure, until the employee leaves the organisation. 
 
 
6.0 Staff on Secondment 
 
6.1 Any individual on secondment for more than six months, into another role within the 

Council, will be subject to a full Appointment Review Period. 
 
6.2 There is no requirement for an individual on secondment for less than six months to have 

an Appointment Review Period. However, if the line manager has concerns regarding the 
employee’s performance, capability, attendance or conduct during the term of the 
secondment, they should speak with them, in the first instance, to discuss if any further 
support can be identified. The manager may decide that the most appropriate option is to 

Page 52



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

terminate the secondment early, following advice from HR. Where this is considered to be 
the most appropriate course of action the manager will explain their reasons for this 
decision to the secondee, and will give them reasonable notice of their return to their 
substantive role. 

 
6.3 On successful completion of the Appointment Review Period, the appointee will be 

confirmed into the role for the agreed period of the secondment only.  This will not be 
confirmation into the role on a permanent basis. 
 

 
7.0 Probation and Appointment Review Procedure 
 
7.1 In order to support the Probation and Appointment Review process the Council has 

developed a procedure to assist in the fair and consistent treatment of all new appointees. 
 
7.2 The Probation/Appointment Review Period normally lasts for a period of six months. 

Throughout the six month Probation/Appointment Review Period an appointee’s 
performance and competence should be subject to assessment by their line manager. 

 
7.3 Regular informal one to one meetings or discussions should be held to review performance 

and to ensure that new appointees are kept informed of their progress against the required 
standards.  Whilst one to one meetings are informal, these still form part of the process of 
assessing or measuring an appointee’s performance, and ensuring that they are receiving 
appropriate support. 

 
7.4 Managers must ensure that any concerns they have are raised as soon as possible to allow 

the appointee opportunity to improve.  Where concerns only develop towards the end of the 
Probation/Appointment Review Period, this will not prevent matters being considered in line 
with the relevant sections of this Policy and Procedure.  

 
7.5 Formal review meetings should take place within the appointee’s first week of employment, 

then at the three month, mid-way point, and six months after they started in the role, in line 
with Section 9. 

 
7.6 It is considered good practice for the line manager to book the review meetings into the 

diary of the employee soon after the start of employment, to ensure that the review 
meetings take place in a timely manner.  

 
 
8.0 Commencing Employment  
 
8.1 It is known that where an appointee feels welcomed into a new organisation or team, that 

they are more likely to feel a stronger positive connection with their employer and therefore 
more likely to perform and attend work well.  

 
8.2 It is therefore good practice for line managers to make contact with their appointee prior to 

them commencing work in their new role and ensure they know when and where to arrive 
on their first day in the role and who they should ask for upon arrival. This is also an 
opportunity for the appointee to ask any further questions they may have before their first 
day in the role. 

 
8.3 Line managers are responsible for ensuring that work locations or work stations are 

prepared and any equipment the appointee may require is ordered in preparation for their 
first day.  This will help ensure that the appointee feels welcome on arrival. 

 

Page 53



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

8.4 Where appointees need to undertake specified training before they are able to undertake 
some or all aspects of their role, such as manual handling, the line manager should ensure 
that this is arranged promptly. 

 
8.5 A new starter pack will be provided by HR to the line managers of any appointees who are 

new to Lancaster City Council. The documents within the starter pack should be used in 
conjunction with any service based induction arrangements.   

 
 
9.0 Undertaking Probation and Appointment Review Assessments  
 

The line manager should ensure that they (or another nominated individual) are available to 
welcome the appointee on their first day in the role. In the first few days in the role the line 
manager should give a local induction to provide the appointee with essential information 
regarding the role, team and wider Council, including time to complete any appropriate 
online e-learning and to ensure that the employee understands their responsibilities with 
regard to relevant health and safety matters.  

 
9.1 Initial Meeting  
 
9.1.1 An initial formal meeting should then be held within the first two weeks of the appointee 

commencing their new role. This is separate to any general welcome meetings. This will be 
an opportunity for the line manager to outline their expectations during the Probation/ 
Appointment Review Period and to set initial objectives for the appointee. The main 
objectives should be listed on the Probation/Appointment Review Form 1.  

 
9.1.2 The Probationary/Appointment Review Period must be properly planned to be effective.  

The standards required and objectives to be achieved need to be explained to the 
appointee and they should be clear of what is expected of them. By signing the 
Probation/Appointment Review Form 1, the appointee is confirming they understand the 
standards and objectives they must achieve.  

 
9.1.3 Appointees should be set between three and six objectives, depending on the nature of the 

job role, which should follow the S.M.A.R.T. principle (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, 
Relevant, Time limited). These should be linked to the relevant Job Description/ Person 
Specification for the post. For further support on setting objectives, please contact your 
designated HR Partner. 

 
9.1.4 It is recognised that in some areas of the Council, in addition to the main objectives listed 

on the form, the service unit may have a fuller list of objectives/targets that they consider 
must be achieved in order for a specific role to be effectively carried out. Where this is the 
case the line manager must ensure that the appointee is aware of this and it may be useful 
to append any such document to the Probation/Appointment Review Form 1.  

 
9.1.5 The health and safety risk assessment(s) for the post, will have been revisited by the line 

manager at the time the post was advertised, and therefore the health and safety 
information discussed between the manager and appointee will be current. During the initial 
meeting the line manager will make the appointee aware of any key health and safety 
responsibilities and requirements, which are attached to the post. 

 
9.1.6 A record of the meeting must be kept on the Probation/Appointment Review Form 1, 

which must be signed by both the line manager and the appointee. The form should be sent 
to HR within five working days of the appointee’s start date, which will be retained in the 
appointee’s central personnel record. Copies should be retained by the manager and 
appointee for their reference. 

Page 54



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

9.2 Initial Learning and Development Needs 
 
9.2.1 The manager and appointee should also discuss any initial learning and development 

needs, which will assist the appointee in becoming effective in their role. It is important that 
any development needs should be clearly linked to the role. The line manager should make 
the appointee aware of the Council’s Corporate Training Programme and how they access 
training. If any development needs are identified, which can be supported by the Corporate 
Training Programme, this should be booked through MyView or via completion of a Training 
and Development Nomination form, which should be returned to HR.  

 
9.2.2 It may be agreed that the appointee requires access to a course that is not available via the 

Corporate Training Programme. In these circumstances the Service Training Budget should 
be utilised and/or other delivery of funding options explored, determined as appropriate by 
the relevant manager.  

 
9.2.3 There are a number of mandatory courses accessed via the Learning Zone, the Council’s 

e-learning system which must be completed during the appointee’s first weeks of 
employment, ideally within the first week. 

 
9.2.4 All new appointees will automatically be invited to Corporate Induction within their probation 

period.  It is a mandatory requirement that all individuals who are new to the Council attend 
this Corporate Induction to ensure that they are orientated to the wider Council. As this may 
take place some weeks after the employee starts in their new role, managers must ensure 
that they have appropriately inducted the appointee into their Service and team. 

 
9.3 Three Month Review Meeting 
 
9.3.1 The formal Three Month Review Meeting should happen on or as near to the three month 

anniversary of the appointee starting the role as possible, which is at the mid-way point of 
the Probation/Appointment Review Period. 

 
9.3.2 At the Three Month Review Meeting the appointee and manager must formally document 

the standards of work performance, conduct and attendance of the appointee, as well as 
their progress against the objectives that were set at the initial meeting. The manager and 
appointee should recognise areas where they have met or exceeded objectives as well as 
areas where they have not yet met objectives. Any areas of concern should be discussed 
and noted on the Review Form.  

 
9.3.3 The meeting should also consider what, if any, further support, training or guidance is 

required. A review of any courses, including e-learning, which were identified as required 
on the Probation/Appointment Review Form 1 should take place. Consideration should also 
be given to any further learning and development needs.  

 
9.3.4 A record of the meeting, including appointee comments, should be made on 

Probation/Appointment Review Form 2 – 3 Month Review, which must be signed by 
both the line manager and the appointee. The form must be sent to HR within five working 
days of the review taking place. Copies should be retained by the manager and appointee 
for their reference. 

 
9.3.5 It is not expected that managers should wait until this meeting to discuss any issues 

relating to the appointee’s performance, conduct or attendance.  Managers should raise 
any concerns as soon as they come to light, so that the appointee has an opportunity to 
make any required improvements.  The manager should ensure that the issues raised have 
been recorded. Equally the appointee should not wait until this meeting before raising any 
issues that are impacting upon their ability to achieve their objectives and the standards of 
performance required. However, where issues have been previously identified it will be 
appropriate for those to be reviewed during the discussion.  

Page 55



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

 
9.3.6 The manager should: 

 
� discuss the appointee’s performance against objectives and targets set at the initial 

meeting; 
 
� review customer service skills (internal and external) in line with corporate standards; 
 
� review interpersonal and communication skills; 
 
� review attendance and punctuality, noting any absences that have occurred and the 

reasons for these; 
 
� identify any areas of performance, conduct and attendance that need improving, specifying 

the standards required and how these can be achieved; 
 
� review training requirements and agree any further development needs; 
 
� recognise and record good performance and achievements made so far; 
 
� note what support and guidance has been provided to date and what future support and 

guidance is available; 
 
� set a date for the Six Month Review Meeting. 
 

9.3.6 The appointee should: 
 
� actively participate in the review, including identifying any successes or difficulties they 

have experienced; 
 
� further discuss any problems or issues which they believe are preventing them from 

demonstrating their suitability for the role; 
 
� confirm any training and development needs identified since the initial meeting. 

 
9.4 Six Month Review Meeting 
 
9.4.1 The formal Six Month Review Meeting should happen on or as near to the six month 

anniversary of the appointee’s start date in the role as possible. 
 
9.4.2 The manager should review the appointee’s performance in the final three months of the 

Probation/Appointment Review Period, as well as reviewing progress against any issues 
identified at the Three Month Review Meeting. During the meeting the manager and 
appointee will discuss their performance against objectives/targets and discuss whether 
there are any further development needs or objectives still to be met. 

 
9.4.3 At the Six Month Review Meeting the manager should confirm verbally with the appointee 

whether they have successfully completed their Probation/Appointment Review Period.  
 
9.4.4 If the manager considers that the appointee has not met the objectives and/or standards to 

be confirmed in post, the manager should verbally advise the employee of this and whether 
or not it is the intention to extend the Probation/Appointment Review Period.  

 
9.4.5 A record of the meeting should be kept on the Probation/Appointment Review Form 3 – 

6 Month Review, which must be signed by both the line manager and the appointee. The 
form must be sent to HR within five working days of the review taking place. Copies should 
be retained by the manager and appointee for their reference. 

Page 56



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

 
9.4.6 It is not expected that managers should wait until this meeting to discuss any issues 

relating to the employee’s performance, conduct or attendance. Where these have been a 
matter of concern it is appropriate for these to be formally discussed and noted, whether 
the issues have been resolved or are ongoing. Subject to the issues involved, it may be 
appropriate for matters to be dealt with in line with Sections 10 – 14.  

 
9.4.7 The manager should: 

 
� discuss the appointee’s performance against objectives and targets set at the initial 

meeting; 
 
� review whether the appointee has met the requirements discussed at the Three Month 

Review Meeting, including quality and accuracy of work, customer services skills, 
interpersonal/communication skills and attendance/timekeeping in line with service and 
corporate standards; 

 
� review training requirements and agree any future learning and development needs. 
 

9.4.8 In the case of a Probationary Period the manager should then decide whether to: 
 

1. confirm the appointee has successfully completed their Probationary Period. 
 

2. extend the probationary period for a period of up to three months, (see Section 11). 
 

3. take action in line with Section 12 below to consider terminating the appointee’s 
contract during their probationary period due to the appointee’s inability to 
demonstrate their suitability for the post. 

 
9.4.9 In the case of an Appointment Review Period the manager should then decide whether to:  
 

1.  confirm that the employee has successfully completed their Appointment Review 
Period. 

 
2.  in the event that there are unresolved issues that have occurred during the 

Appointment Review Period and it is not possible for the manager to confirm the 
successful completion of the Appointment Review Period, the appointee will be 
referred to Stage 2 of the Council’s Capability and Performance Improvement 
Procedure. 

 
3. only where the manager is confident that a short extension to the Appointment 

Review Period will result in the appointee meeting the standard, should 
consideration be given to a temporary extension, as an alternative to moving directly 
to Stage 2 of the Council’s Capability and Performance Improvement Procedure. 

 
9.4.10 Where the employee has met the required standard, HR will, upon receipt of the completed 

Probation/Appointment Review Form 3 – Six Month Review, write to the appointee to 
confirm the successful completion of their Probation/Appointment Review Period.  

 
 
10.0 Managing Performance, Attendance and Conduct  
 
 A formal meeting to discuss an appointee’s performance, attendance or conduct can be 
 called at any time during the Probation/Appointment Review Period, if the manager 
 considers that there is appropriate reason to do so. It is not in either the appointee’s or the 
 Council’s interest to delay or ignore issues that are giving cause for concern. 
 

Page 57



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

10.1 Issues Regarding Performance Capability 
 
10.1.1 Issues that arise in respect of an appointee’s performance capability during the Probation/ 

Appointment Review Period should be discussed with the appointee at the time that they 
occur, rather than leaving them until the formal review meetings. It may be beneficial for 
managers to seek advice from their Service HR Partner at an early point when concerns 
begin to develop. 

 
10.1.2 Where performance capability issues arise the manager should meet with the appointee 

informally in the first instance to: 
 

� clarify what the difficulties are in detail, specifying where and how their performance is 
falling below what is acceptable; 

 
� provide (as appropriate) evidence and examples of the problems and issues to be 

discussed; 
 
� allow the appointee an opportunity to raise and respond to any concerns; 
 
� discuss the action required by the member of staff to address the problem, e.g., set targets 

specifying in detail what standards of performance are required to reach an acceptable 
level; 

 
� identify any training needs that may need to be met in order for the appointee to achieve 

the targets; 
 
� set dates by when the targets should be met; 
 
� explain what the consequences may be if the standards / targets are not met, i.e., it may be 

necessary to discuss the matter further at a formal meeting, the outcome of which may 
mean that the appointee is not confirmed in post or in certain circumstances that the 
Probation/Appointment Review Period is terminated early. 

 
10.1.3 The manager should provide a written summary of what was discussed during the meeting 

to the appointee within five working days of the meeting. A copy of the letter should be sent 
to the Service HR Partner for the employee’s record. 

 
10.1.4 If performance does not improve within a reasonable timescale following any informal 

meetings, appointees in the Probation Review Period should be invited to attend a Formal 
Review Meeting with their line manager and a member of the HR Team, in line with Section 
12. The outcome of the Formal Review Meeting may lead to the termination of their 
employment within their Probationary Review Period. Appointees who are under 
Appointment Review should either be referred to Stage 2 of the Council’s Capability and 
Performance Improvement Procedure or, if a secondment arrangement is in place it may be 
appropriate to bring the secondment to an end earlier than anticipated, in line with Section 
6.  

 
10.2 Issues Regarding Poor Attendance 
 
10.2.1 A Probation/Appointment Review Period enables the appointee to demonstrate their 

suitability for the role, it is therefore expected that attendance is excellent to ensure that the 
appointee fully utilises the time available to demonstrate their suitability.  

 
10.2.2 Evidence suggests that individuals who have poor attendance in the first few months of in a 

new role are likely to continue with that pattern if they are confirmed in post. The Council 
requires excellent levels of attendance to ensure efficient and effective services are 

Page 58



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

provided to the public and the Probationary/Appointment Review Period is an appointee’s 
opportunity to demonstrate their commitment to this.   

 
10.2.3 Where a manager has concern over attendance they should seek further advice from their 

Service HR Partner and arrange a formal meeting in line with Section 12.  Appointees 
subject to an Appointment Review Period will be managed, as appropriate, under the 
Council’s Sickness Absence Management Policy and Procedure. 

 
10.2.4 Poor attendance during the Probation Review Period is likely to lead to termination of 

employment. 
 
10.3 Issues of Misconduct 
 
10.3.1 The Council’s full disciplinary policy and procedure does not apply where any disciplinary 

issues arise within the Probation Review Period. Managers should contact their Service HR 
Partner and arrange a formal meeting in line with Section 12.   

 
10.3.2 Misconduct during the Probation Review Period is likely to lead to termination of 

employment. For those staff in an Appointment Review Period, the Council’s normal 
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure should be invoked. 

 
 
11.0 Extending the Probation/Appointment Review Period 
 
11.1 The Probation Review Period runs for a period of six months. During this time managers 

must ensure that constructive feedback is given to appointees on a regular basis and that 
any performance, attendance or conduct issues are resolved as soon as possible within 
this period.  It is important that managers make all reasonable efforts to support appointees 
in meeting the agreed objectives during this time.  Managers should keep a record of 
issues discussed at informal meetings, to enable the manager and the appointee to keep 
track of their performance against overall objectives each time they meet.  

 
11.2 In the majority of cases, where the appointee has not met the standard within the normal 

six month Probation/Appointment Review Period, it will be appropriate to discuss this at the 
Six Month Review Meeting.  

 
11.3 In exceptional circumstances the Probation Review Period may be extended for up to three 

months. This may apply to a situation where an employee has not yet demonstrated their 
suitability, but they are likely to do so given more time.   

 
11.4 Appointees who have not demonstrated their suitability during their Appointment Review 

Period should be transferred to Stage 2 of the Council’s Capability and Performance 
Improvement Policy, if they have not met the required standard by the Six Month Review 
Meeting. In certain circumstances (see Section 9), the manager may consider it appropriate 
to agree an extension of up to three months to the Appointment Review Period. However, if 
the appointee fails to achieve the necessary standard by the end of the extension period, 
they would automatically be moved to Stage 2 of the Council’s Capability and Performance 
Improvement Policy.  

 
11.5 Where a manager believes that the appointee may not be able to achieve the required 

standard by the Six Month Review Meeting, they should discuss this with their Service HR 
Partner in good time, prior to arranging the Six Month Review Meeting. Where it is 
considered appropriate to offer a short extension to the Probation/Appointment Review 
Period, this should be discussed with the appointee at the Six Month Review Meeting and 
subsequently confirmed on the relevant form. 

 

Page 59



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

11.6 If the decision is taken to extend the Probation Review Period the line manager should 
complete the Probation/Appointment Review Form 4 - Extension of Probation/ 
Appointment Review, which must be signed by both the line manager and the appointee. 
The form must be sent to HR within five working days of the review taking place. Copies 
should be retained by the manager and appointee for their reference.  

 
11.7 The manager should confirm with the appointee: 
 

� the reasons for the extension; 
 
� the length of the extension period; 
 
� any assistance, guidance or training to be given during the extension; 
 
� any areas of improvement that are required and how these will be monitored; 
 
� the consequences should they not reach the required standard by the Extension Review 

Meeting.  In the case of appointees in a Probation Review Period, this will mean that the 
appointee will not be confirmed in post and that their employment is likely to be terminated 
in line with Section 12 below. 
 

11.8 Where it is appropriate to extend Probation/Appointment review, the manager and 
appointee should have discussed and recorded the performance to date, and also 
discussed and recorded the future objectives, standards and improvements that must be 
met during the extension period.  

 
11.9 The manager must convene an Extension Review Meeting, towards the end of the 

extension period, to discuss the appointee’s performance during the extension period. After 
discussion during the meeting, the manager will confirm whether or not the appointee has 
met the necessary standard or not. A record of the meeting should be made on the 
Probation/Appointment Review Form 5 – Extension Review Meeting, which must be 
signed by both the line manager and the appointee. The form must be sent to HR within 
five working days of the review taking place. Copies should be retained by the manager 
and appointee for their reference. 

 
11.10 In the case of a Probationary Period the manager should then decide whether to: 
 

1. confirm the appointee has successfully completed their Probationary Period. 
 

2. take action in line with Section 12 to consider terminating the appointee’s contract 
during their probationary period, due to their inability to demonstrate their suitability 
for the post. 

 
11.11 In the case of an Appointment Review Period the manager should then decide whether to:  
 

1.  confirm that the appointee has successfully completed their Appointment Review 
Period. 

 
2.  transfer the appointee to Stage 2 of the Council’s Capability and Performance 

Improvement Procedure. 
 

11.12 Where the appointee has met the required standard, HR will, upon receipt of the completed 
Probation/Appointment Review Form 5 – Extension Review Meeting, write to the 
appointee to confirm them in post. 

 

Page 60



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

 
12.0 Termination of Employment in the Probation Period 
 
12.1 Where the appointee has failed to achieve the required standard of performance, conduct 

or attendance during their Probation Review Period, they should be invited to a formal 
meeting to discuss this by their manager.  

 
12.2 On occasion it may be apparent early in the Probation/Appointment Review Period that the 

appointee is not suitable for the role. On such occasions it will not be necessary to wait until 
the end of the normal six month review period to take action against the appointee. Advice 
should be obtained from the Service HR Partner in all cases.  

 
12.3 The manager should write to the appointee giving five working days’ notice that they are 

required to attend a Formal Review Meeting to discuss their performance during Probation 
Review Period.  

 
12.4 The purpose of the meeting will be to consider the appointee’s performance, conduct and 

attendance to date and take a decision on whether employment should be terminated due 
to failure to achieve the required standards. 

 
12.4 The appointee is entitled to be accompanied at the meeting by a trade union representative 

or work colleague. Managers should be accompanied by their Service HR Partner. 
 
12.5 Only senior Service Managers who report directly into a Chief Officer, may hold Formal 

Review Meetings to consider whether or not the appointee’s employment should be 
terminated. In the majority of cases it is likely that the senior Service Manager will not be 
the appointee’s line manager. On occasion the Formal Review Meeting may be conducted 
by the appointee’s line manager, who has conducted the probation review meetings. The 
senior Service Manager may ask the line manager to attend the discussion to explain why 
they consider the employee has failed to meet the required standard.  

 
12.6 Where the manager considers that the appointee’s performance, conduct or attendance is 

below the required standard and that this will not improve within a reasonable period of time 
then the appointee may be dismissed with appropriate contractual notice or offered pay in 
lieu of notice, where normal deductions would apply. 

 
12.7 A letter confirming the outcome of the meeting should be sent to the appointee in the 5 

working days following the meeting.  
 
12.8 If at any point the appointee wishes to end their employment within the Probation Review 

Period they must give a minimum of one month’s notice in writing to their line manager.  
However, in exceptional circumstances the line manager, in consultation with their Service 
HR Partner, may be prepared to agree to a request from the appointee to serve a shorter 
notice period. 

 
 
13.0 Right of Appeal 
 
13.1 Where a decision is made to terminate employment the appointee has the right of appeal 

against this decision. 
 
13.2 In order to exercise this right, the appointee must write to the HR & OD Manager within 10 

working days of receipt of the written notice of termination of employment, clearly stating 
their grounds of appeal. 

 
13.3 The Chief Officer will normally hear the appeal within 20 days of receipt of the letter of 

appeal.  If it is not possible to hear the appeal within the above timescale, the HR Partner 

Page 61



G: Master Policies/Probation & Appointment Review/ Draft 03.02.15 

will write to the appointee setting out the reason for delay and the intended date of the 
hearing. 

 
13.4 At the appeal hearing the appointee has the right to be accompanied by a Trade Union 

representative or work colleague.  The Hearing Officer will be accompanied by a member of 
the HR Team. 

 
13.5 The Service Manager who took the decision to dismiss the employee will present the 

management case outlining why the decision to dismiss was taken.  
 
13.6 The Chief Officer will allow both sides opportunity to present their case. After adjourning to 

consider the available information, the Chief Officer will reconvene the hearing and will 
normally verbally communicate their decision.  This will be followed by confirmation of the 
decision in writing, within 5 working days of the hearing.  
 
The Chief Officer will either: 

  
� extend the Probation Review Period for a further defined period of time of no more than 

three months, clearly outlining the standards/objectives to be achieved by a set date, or; 
 

� uphold the decision to terminate employment. 
 

The decision of the Hearing Officer is final and there is no further right of appeal.  
 
 
14.0 Transfer to Stage 2 of the Capability and Performance Improvement Policy 
 
14.1 Where an appointee within the Appointment Review Period has failed to meet the 

necessary standards, they will be transferred to Stage 2 of the Capability and Performance 
Improvement Policy.  

 
14.2 Managers may elect to move them to Stage 2 of the Capability and Performance 

Improvement Policy either six months after commencing the role or, in specific 
circumstances, after the appointee has been given a further opportunity to meet the 
standard via an extension of up to three months to their Appointment Review Period.  

 
14.3 After discussion with the appointee at either the Six Month Review Meeting or the 

Extension Review Meeting, the manager will verbally confirm their decision to the 
appointee. There is no right of appeal against the decision to move an appointee to Stage 2 
of the Capability and Performance Improvement Policy. The manager will complete the 
necessary paperwork and provide a copy to HR within five working days to confirm that the 
appointee has been unable to complete the Appointment Review Period.  

 
14.4 The manager, with advice from the Service HR Partner, should also write to the appointee 

to confirm this decision. Any arrangements after this point will be made in line with the 
Capability and Performance Improvement Policy. 

 
 
15.0 Review 
 

This policy and procedure will be reviewed two years after implementation or earlier in the 
event of changes in legislation. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     1 

 
 

Early Termination of Employment Policy and Arrangements 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This Policy sets out the Council’s approach to the early termination of an employee’s 

contract of employment. For the purposes of this Policy, termination occurs where an 
employee’s employment ceases as a result of actions taken by the Council or in response 
to a request made by an individual employee. 

 
1.2 This policy has been developed with due consideration given to the requirements of: 
 

• Local Government (Early Termination of Employment Discretionary Compensation) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006. 

• Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) 
Regulations 2007 

• Local Government Pension Scheme (Admin) Regulations 2008 (regulation 66). 
• The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013  

 
1.3 In formulating this Policy, the Council has given consideration to the extent to which it may 

exercise its discretionary powers, with appropriate safeguards to prevent a serious loss of 
confidence in the public service, and has satisfied itself that the policy is workable, 
affordable and reasonable having regard to the foreseeable costs. 

 
1.4 The Council’s view is that in relation to the early termination of employment this action 

should be seen as an exception rather than a norm, although it recognises that there may 
be circumstances where early termination of employment is unavoidable, and 
circumstances where early termination may benefit the Council and be acceptable to the 
employee.  

 
2 Resignation 
 
2.1 An employee of the Council may exercise their contractual right to resign at any time by 

giving proper notice under the contract of employment. Once a lawful resignation has been 
given it cannot be withdrawn other than with the Council’s express permission or where the 
resignation came in the heat of the moment and was retracted quickly. 

 
3 Retirement (Local Government Pension Scheme Membership)  
 
3.1 The normal retirement age for Local Government Pension Scheme members is now 

aligned to the employee’s individual State Pension Age (normal retirement age). If an 
employee intends to leave the Council’s employment at normal retirement age, they are 
required to notify the Council of their intention to retire in line with their required contractual 
notice period. When a member reaches normal retirement age, an immediate pension 
becomes payable once the employee has left employment.  

 
3.2 A member of the LGPS may retire before normal retirement age, but may be subject to 

reduction to their pension benefits (see early retirement section). 
 
3.3 Employees will continue to accrue service-related benefits after their normal retirement age 

as long as they remain in employment with an organisation that is a member of the LGPS. 

Page 63



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     2 

However, regulation 17(4) of the LGPS Benefit Regulations requires that a scheme 
member’s pension must come into payment no later than the day before the member's 75th 
birthday. 

 
4 Early Retirement with Reduced Pension Summary 
 
4.1 Under LGPS Regulations, on leaving employment, employees can elect to receive their 

pension benefits  from age 55, provided that they have at least 3 months membership of 
the pension scheme.  

 
4.2 From age 55 employees can access their pension benefits without the Council’s consent.  
 
4.3 If the employee elects to receive their benefits before their normal retirement date the 

benefits will be reduced, to reflect the costs of the pension coming into payment early, 
subject to any transitional protection arrangements that may be applicable. 

 
4.4 An employee considering early retirement can obtain detailed advice from “Your Pension 

Service” Helpline on 01772 530530 or by email to pensions.helpdesk@lancashire.gov.uk 
 
5 Ill-Health Retirement 
 
5.1 If, due to an employee’s ongoing ill health, the Council has no alternative but to terminate 

an employee’s contract of employment, he / she may request Ill Health Retirement, under 
the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme. In all cases the Council will 
follow the procedures defined by the LGPS regulations. 
  

6 Redundancy 
  

6.1 Under s.139 of the Employment Rights Act 1996, an employee is dismissed by reason of 
redundancy if the dismissal is wholly or mainly attributable to: 

• The fact that the employer has ceased or intends to cease to carry on the business 
for the purposes for which the employee was employed, or to carry on that business 
in the place where the employee was so employed,  or 

• The fact that the requirements of the business for employees to carry out work of a 
particular kind, or for employees to carry out work of a particular kind, in the place 
where the employee was employed by the employer, have ceased or diminished or 
are expected to cease or diminish. 

 
6.2 The Council recognises that, on occasion, policy decisions will necessitate a reduction in 

the number of its employees below a level that can be achieved through natural turnover. 
In such circumstances, the Council will take all reasonable steps to avoid compulsory 
redundancy.  The Council’s Redeployment Policy is particularly relevant in this respect and 
should be read together with this Policy. 

 
7  Redundancy Pay  
 
7.1 Regardless of whether an employee is entitled to receive their pension or not, they are 

entitled to receive a compensatory lump sum payment in cases of redundancy, where they 
meet the statutory arrangements for a redundancy payment. 

 
7.2 Under the Employment Rights Act 1996, an employee dismissed due to redundancy after 

having completed at least two years’ continuous service with an employer is entitled to a 
redundancy payment.   

 

Page 64



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     3 

8  Statutory Redundancy Pay Calculations 
 
8.1  The Employment Rights Act 1996, section 162 sets out how a redundancy payment is 

calculated. In summary this is: 

• half a week's pay for each year of employment up to the age of 21 

• one week's pay for each year of employment in which the employee was aged 
between 22 and 40; and  

• one and a half weeks' pay for each year of employment in which the employee was 
aged 41 or over. 

The maximum number of years of employment that can be taken into account is 20. The 
maximum weeks’ pay is a statutory calculation, that is increased annually in line with the 
Retail Prices Index (RPI), under the automatic indexation provisions of the Employment 
Relations Act 1999.  

 
8.2  The Council will calculate the redundancy pay for an employee, subject to compulsory 

redundancy, by using the national statutory formula. Any compulsory redundancy payment 
will be capped at the statutory maximum applicable at the time of dismissal. 

 
9 Calculation of Continuous Service  
 
9.1  For the purpose of the calculation, continuous employment will be the aggregation of all 

continuous local government and related employment defined within the Redundancy 
Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local Government etc.) (Modification) Order 1999 
(as amended). 

 
10 Voluntary Redundancy (VR) 
 
10.1 Under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary 

Compensation) (England and Wales) (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2006 the Council may: 
 

• calculate redundancy pay on actual weekly pay rather than the statutory amount 
 

• enhance the compensation payment (Redundancy Pay) up to a maximum of 66 
weeks 

 
 The Council with therefore exercise its discretion in relation to voluntary redundancy (VR) 
by: 

 
• using the employee’s normal weekly pay to calculate a VR compensation payment 
 
• using the statutory formula for the calculation of applicable weeks (as detailed in 

para 8.1 above) 
 
• capping the maximum VR compensation payment at the statutory maximum 

redundancy compensation payment multiplied by 2.2. 
 

10.2 The Council will always seek to mitigate the impact of any redundancy situation by 
endeavouring to redeploy displaced employees to other suitable employment within the 
Council or by seeking volunteers, before any compulsory redundancies are considered. 

 
10.3 Consultation documentation and communications will identify the posts, which it is 

proposed will be disestablished as part of any restructure. 
 
10.4 The arrangements which relate to a request for volunteers will be set out in the consultation 

Page 65



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     4 

arrangements relating to the relevant change/restructure taking place. 
 
10.5 The management and administration of redundancies will be carried out in such a way to 

ensure there is an objective, fair and non-discriminatory approach in place that is applied 
consistently to workforce reduction. This includes circumstances where there is a fair 
selection for voluntary redundancy in an effort to limit compulsory redundancies.  

 
10.6 The arrangements below outline the main criteria for VR selection. Managers will define the 

specific criteria required for the service area in order to release individuals under VR, whilst 
ensuring limited disruption for the service area and to deliver future Council priorities.  

 
Service Managers and HR must ensure that any volunteer is aware that:  

 
• there is no guarantee that a Voluntary Redundancy will be granted  
• business needs of the Council take priority  
• volunteers will continue to work until a release date is agreed by their manager.  

 
10.7 Consideration will only be given to volunteers for redundancy if this is not detrimental to the 

Council.  The decision to accept applications for voluntary redundancy will be based on the 
need to ensure that there is a balanced workforce with the requisite skills to meet future 
business needs. 

 
10.8 The terms of the Redeployment Policy will not apply to any employee who applies for VR. 

Further, an employee who has unsuccessfully sought redeployment in a redundancy 
situation will not subsequently be eligible to apply for voluntary redundancy. 

 
10.9 If an application for voluntary redundancy is granted, the employee will receive an 

enhanced redundancy payment. This will be calculated using the national statutory 
redundancy formula, with the statutory maximum figure for weekly pay replaced by the 
employee’s actual weekly pay. The total of this calculations will be multiplied by 2.2 to 
produce a voluntary redundancy payment.  

 
10.10 Any enhanced redundancy pay will not exceed the sum of the maximum statutory 

redundancy pay multiplied by 2.2.  
 
(For example: as at 1 February 2015 this was £13,920 x 2.2 = £30,624). 

.   
10.11 If an employee accepts voluntary redundancy and therefore benefits from an enhanced 

redundancy payment, they will not be eligible to appeal against the selection process for 
voluntary redundancy.  

 
11 Redundancy or Efficiency Terminations - Employees aged 55 and over (Pension 

Issues)    
 
11.1 In addition to the compensation payments specified above, for termination of employment 

on the grounds of redundancy (or efficiency), employees aged 55 or over, who have at 
least three months’ membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme, will receive 
immediate payment of an unreduced pension and lump sum based on their accrued 
contributory service at the date their employment is terminated.  

 
12 Consultation 
 
12.1 Before any decisions are taken which may affect the ongoing employment of any employee 

appropriate consultation will take place with both the affected employee(s) and the relevant 
trade union(s). The communication during the consultation process is designed to ensure 
the Council fully explains how any individual employee and/or groups may be affected and 
the timescale of any proposed actions. 

Page 66



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     5 

 
12.2 The Service Manager must be able to demonstrate that the selection for redundancy is 

made on the basis of objective criteria that is reasonable, fair and consistently applied. 
Once provisional selections for redundancy have been made, individual consultation with 
each employee will be arranged. At these meetings each employee has the right to be 
accompanied by a trade union representative or work colleague.  

 
13 Right of Appeal against selection for Redundancy   
 
13.1 As a means of maintaining an open dialogue during a consultation period, there is no 

provision for an employee who has been provisionally identified as displaced by a 
restructure to raise a grievance or appeal at this stage, based on the employee’s view that 
they: 

• disagree with the proposals which have been developed; or  
• the provisional selection arrangements; or 
• the pool of potentially at risk employees.  

 
For the process of consultation to be meaningful, it is expected that if there are issues to be 
raised then these would form part of the dialogue between management, affected 
employees and, where appropriate, their trade union representatives. 

 
13.2 However once an employee has been selected for redundancy and has been formally 

issued with notice of their selection for redundancy, and is therefore facing redeployment or 
dismissal, they do have the right to appeal the decision. Such appeals will be to the 
Council’s Personnel Committee.  The grounds for appeal are either that: 

 
• the employee is dissatisfied with the way in which the Council has applied its 

redundancy selection criteria;  
 
 Or 
 

• the employee believes that he/she has been unfairly disadvantaged by the selection 
criteria or not given a fair opportunity to put forward representations. 

 
14 Termination in the Interests of efficiency  
 
14.1 Early termination of employment in the interests of the efficient exercise of the Council’s 

functions does not require a redundancy situation to exist, and does not require that a post 
be deleted from the Council’s Establishment. It is impossible to define conclusively “the 
interests of efficiency”. However, this might include circumstances where changes beyond 
the individual employee’s control have led to inefficient discharge of a function, or where 
the retention of an employee is preventing the introduction of changes in structure or 
practices that would improve efficiency.   

 
14.2 Early termination on the grounds of efficiency will not be granted as a substitute for 

disciplinary action, or for action on the grounds of capability where such action 
would be justified. 

 
14.3 The Council believes that termination in the interests of efficiency will be rare.  Generally 

the Council will not exercise its discretion to pay compensation where employment is 
terminated early on efficiency grounds.  However, individual cases will be considered on 
their merits.  

 
14.4 If compensation is being considered or if there are other capital pension costs arising from 

the termination, Chief Officers must be able to demonstrate how they intend to make the 
required efficiency savings and fund the early termination. 

 

Page 67



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     6 

15 Process for applying for Early Termination (Redundancy or Efficiency) 
 
15.1 Redundancy (or potential redundancy) situations will be identified initially by Chief Officers 

and linked to the Council’s corporate and business planning arrangements, or other 
emerging changes in business needs.  In doing so, Chief Officers will consult with Human 
Resources and Financial Services. Potential situations for terminating employment in the 
interest of efficiency will also be identified in this way.   

 
15.2 Subject to Human Resources’ confirmation of the situation, and Financial Services’ 

confirmation of the financial implications, Chief Officers will then notify staff affected (or 
staff potentially affected) as part of a structured consultation process, and where 
appropriate, seek applications for voluntary termination on the relevant grounds.  Wherever 
possible, volunteers will be sought, rather than resorting to compulsory redundancy. 

 
15.3 An employee who is considering the possibility of applying for early termination on either 

redundancy or efficiency grounds should first speak to the appropriate senior Service 
Officer, who will speak with the Chief Officer on a confidential basis.  The Chief Officer will 
consult Human Resources and Financial Services as appropriate and a decision will be 
made as to whether or not the application would be supported in principle. 

 
15.4 Employees who are members of a recognised trade union are strongly advised to discuss 

an application for voluntary redundancy with their trade union representative at an early 
stage in the procedure. 

 
15.5 Employees may also wish to contact Human Resources for information about 

redundancy/compensatory pay and pension benefits (if appropriate).  
 
15.6 Human Resources staff are not able to advise on pension matters and further information 

regarding pension benefits may be obtained from “Your Pension Service” (at Lancashire 
County Council), as the administering body.  Seeking such information will not commit the 
employee, and the request or application may be withdrawn by the employee at any stage.  

 
15.7 In the event that an employee decides to formalise an application for early termination, 

whether on grounds of redundancy or efficiency, the request should in the first instance be 
made in writing to the Chief Officer stating the date on which it is requested that the 
employment should terminate.  A copy of the letter should also be sent to the HR and OD 
Manager. 

 
15.8 All such formal applications, whether they include early payment of pension benefits or not, 

will be referred to the Chief Executive for consideration. 
 
16 Decision Making  
 
16.1 Applications which relate to minor changes to the Council’s establishment will be 

determined under the scheme of delegation by the Chief Executive. Minor changes are 
consider to be those which affect less than 20 employees. However, the Chief Executive 
may refer any case, to the Personnel Committee and/or Cabinet for consideration, 
irrespective of the number of employees affected by the change. Factors affecting this 
decision may be the type of posts that are disestablished or the potential impact on the way 
services are delivered following any changes. 

 
16.2 All changes that impact on more than 20 employees will be referred to members for 

consideration. 

Page 68



 

G:Master Policies/Early Termination of Employment  - JCC 03.02.15 DRAFT V3 Final     7 

17 Re-employment with Lancaster City Council 
 
17.1 An employee who is dismissed on redundancy grounds, and received a voluntary 

(enhanced) redundancy payment, may be considered for re-employment to posts within the 
Council after a period of one calendar year has elapsed since the date of termination of 
employment.  

 
17.2 If an employee is dismissed on compulsory redundancy grounds he/she may be considered 

for re-employment to any post within the Council after the minimum statutory period of four 
weeks has elapsed. 

 
18 State Benefits 
 
18.1 The Council recommends that any employee whose employment with the Council is 

terminated should request information from the local office of the Department for Work and 
Pensions about state benefits. Entitlement to any Benefits / Support may be affected by a 
number of factors.  Individuals are advised to check their own personal position in relation 
to the claiming of benefit. 

 
19 Other Policies 
 
19.1 This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Redeployment Policy and 

Flexible Retirement Policy, which are available from Human Resources or accessible via 
the intranet (insert URL). 

 
20  Discretionary benefits 
 
20.1 Under the regulations that govern the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) the 

Council is able to exercise a number discretions. Full details of how the Council has 
determined it will exercise any discretions is detailed in the “Statement of Lancaster City 
Council – Employer Discretions” <<Insert URL>>.  For further advice and guidance on this 
matter is available from the HR & OD Team.   

 
21 Review of Policy 
 
21.1 This Policy will be regularly kept under review in the light of operating experience, changes 

in legislation, and the financial position of the Council.  If changes are made to the Policy in 
so far as it relates to discretionary compensation for the early termination of employment, a 
statement of the amended policy will be published, which will take effect one month after 
the date of publication. 

 
20.2 Changes which are required to apply any applicable legislation or regulation will be 

incorporated into the policy documents at the appropriate time and reported for information 
to the recognised trade unions and Personnel Committee. 

 

Page 69



1 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

 

 
Flexible Working (Right to Request) Policy and Procedure 

 
1.0 Scope 

 
1.1 All employees who have a minimum of 26 weeks' continuous service have the right to 

request flexible working and to have their request seriously considered by their employer. 
 
1.2 Each employee has a statutory right to submit only one request in any 12 month period. 
 
1.3 The Flexible Working (Right to Request) Policy does not apply to casual workers. 

 
 

2.0 Aims and Objectives 
 

2.1 The Council wishes, where practicable, to facilitate and support its employees in achieving 
a balance between their work and family life. The Council already has a range of measures 
in place, to assist employees in balancing their commitments, including flexi time or 
compressed shift patterns, 

 
 22 In line with changed legislation, the Council recognises its duty since 1 July 2014 to 

seriously consider requests from all employees for flexible working arrangements. 
Requests to work flexibly can be for any reason and are no longer limited to those 
employees with caring responsibilities. 

 
 
3.0 Conditions and arrangements  
   
3.1 The timescales outlined within this document are those considered to be reasonable in 

normal circumstances by Lancaster City Council. The only statutory requirement regarding 
timescales is that the whole process, from the point that the employee has supplied full 
information, should be completed within 3 months, including any appeal. Where it is not 
possible for the request to be fully considered in the 3 month period, the time period can be 
extended subject to the agreement of the employee. 

 
3.2 At all formal meetings employees have the right to be accompanied by a trade union 

representative or work colleague. A member of the HR Team should attend to provide 
advice to the Service Manager and/or Chief Officer. 

 
3.3 If the employee fails to attend a meeting including an appeal hearing and subsequently fails 

to attend a second (rearranged) meeting, the flexible working request will be treated as 
having been withdrawn and the employee should be advised of this in writing. 

 
3.4 Each request will be considered on a case-by-case basis and in the order that requests are 

received. Agreeing to one request will not set a precedent or create the right for another 
employee to be granted a similar amendment to their working pattern. Equally, flexible 
working requests that are accommodated in one Service area will not create a right to a 
similar request being accommodated in another Service area. 

 

Page 70



2 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

 
4.0 Requests for flexible working 

 
4.1 A request for flexible working could include: 
 

• a request to change the number of hours that an employee works. 
• a request to change the pattern of hours worked. 
• a request to job share. 
• a request to perform some work from the employee's home. 

 
4.2 A request for flexible working may be permanent or temporary. Where a request for flexible 

working is temporary, e.g., to cope with a bereavement, the reason for the request should 
be clearly explained on the application form, which will include the dates when the 
temporary arrangement will be in place.  

 
4.3 Where an employee requests a variation in their hours, including a reduction in working 

hours, the change will be permanent following any agreed trial period. It is not possible to 
guarantee that if, at a future date the employee wished to increase their hours or return to 
their existing pattern of work, such a request could be granted since it would be dependent 
upon service need at that time.   

 
4.4 Where a request is made for a temporary change in hours, it will be the normal expectation 

that the employee will automatically return to their substantive hours or pattern of work at 
the end of the temporary period. Trial periods will not apply to temporary requests for 
flexible working. 

 
4.5 Where a request is received for an employee to work from home on a regular basis, this 

should be considered in line with the document “Guidance on Flexible Working Requests” 
[INSERT URL] along with any relevant guidance or policies relating to the use of 
Information Technology and Health and Safety. Guidance documents will be developed 
over time as changes to operating arrangements occur. 

 
 
5.0 Application Process 

 
5.1 All requests must be made in writing and submitted in the first instance to the relevant 

senior Service Manager. Employees are encouraged to complete the Flexible Working 
Application Form, which is available from the HR Team or is accessible from the HR 
pages of the intranet. Requests can however be made by email or letter.  

 
5.2 Note should be taken of the date of receipt of the Flexible Working Application Form or 

other communication. 
 
5.3 If the employee has not submitted their request via the Council’s Flexible Working 

Application Form, the Service Manager must ensure that sufficient information has been 
obtained, in writing, from the employee to enable the request to be properly considered.  

 
5.4 Any request for flexible working must include: 

• the date of the application; 
• the changes that the employee is seeking to his/her terms and conditions; 
• the date on which the employee would like the revised terms and conditions to come 

into effect; 
• what effect the employee thinks the requested change would have on the organisation; 
• how, in his/her opinion, any such effect might be dealt with; 
• a statement that this is a statutory request; 
• whether or not the employee has made a previous application for flexible working;  

Page 71



3 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

• if the employee has made a previous request, when they made that application; and 
• whether the request is in relation to the Equality Act 2010, for example, as a 

reasonable adjustment for a disabled employee. 

 
6.0 Action by the Service Manager 

 
6.1 In order to comply with statutory timescales, it is important that the Service Manager 

reviews the application promptly. 
 
6.2 If an application is received that does not contain sufficient information to enable the 

employee’s request to be properly considered, the Service Manager (with HR support if 
required) should explain to the employee where additional or amended information is 
required, e.g., further information on the reasons for the request, or how the impact of the 
request can be mitigated.  

 
6.3 The 3 month period will not start until the employee has supplied full information to enable 

their request to be considered.  
 
6.4 Once the Service Manager has received and reviewed a fully completed application, 

containing all the necessary information to assist in making a decision, the Service 
Manager will complete the relevant section of the Flexible Working Application Form and 
pass it to the Service HR Partner to add their comments.  

 
6.5 Once comments have been added, the Flexible Working Application Form will be submitted 

to the Service Chief Officer for consideration, who will normally arrange a meeting with the 
employee to discuss the request.  

 
 
7.0 Action by the Chief Officer – arranging a meeting 

 
7.1 Chief Officers must seriously consider the business case for accepting or rejecting an 

employee’s request for flexible working, by carefully weighing up the potential benefits to 
the employee and the Council, against any adverse impact of implementing the change(s). 

 
7.2 The Chief Officer will normally hold a meeting to consider the employee’s request within 21 

working days of a completed application (or other written request) being received by the 
Service Manager. A template letter inviting the employee to a meeting is available from HR. 

 
7.3 As the employee can be accompanied at the meeting by a trade union representative or 

work colleague, 5 working days’ notice of the meeting should be given. However, if the 
employee is willing to waive their right to notice, the meeting can take place sooner.  

 
7.4 If, for any reason, it is not possible to meet the above timescale, the Chief Officer should 

explain this to the employee and propose an alternative timescale.  
 
7.5 On occasion it may be possible for the Chief Officer to consider and subsequently approve 

the request without meeting with the employee, however it is likely that these cases will be 
the exception. Even where the matter is relatively straightforward it may be appropriate for 
the Chief Officer to meet with the employee to ensure that both sides understand the 
request and are clear on the implications of their request, prior to the arrangement being 
formalised.  

 
7.6 In addition to being accompanied by a member of the HR Team, the Chief Officer may ask 

the Service Manager to be present at the meeting to assist in the discussion around the 
employee’s request. 

  

Page 72



4 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

7.7 The Chief Officer may: 
 

• approve the application as submitted. 
• approve a proposed amendment to the application. 
• reject the application.  
• adjourn the meeting to seek further clarification on any points raised.  

 
If the meeting is adjourned for another day, to seek further information, to allow the Chief 
Officer to make an informed decision, it should be reconvened as soon as practicable. 

 
7.8 After discussion has taken place, the Chief Officer may briefly adjourn the meeting, to 

consider the request and to make their decision. The Chief Officer may choose to 
reconvene the meeting to verbally advise the employee of their decision.  

 
7.9 In all cases, and regardless of whether the request is agreed, partially agreed or rejected, 

the decision be provided to the employee in writing within 10 working days.  
 
 

8.0 If the Chief Officer approves the application 
 

8.1 The employee will receive written confirmation of the Chief Officer’s decision within 10 
working days of the date of the meeting, setting out any action on which the agreement is 
dependent and establish a start date. The Chief Officer should seek advice from HR over 
the content of the letter.  

 
8.2 Once the Chief Officer has agreed a change this will, subject to paragraph 8.5.2 below be 

treated as permanent and the employee has no automatic right to revert back to his/her 
previous pattern of work. Exceptions to this will include temporary changes, for a specified 
time period or, for operational reasons, where the change cannot be agreed on a 
permanent basis. Equally, where it is agreed that a trial period should take place, to 
consider if the requested change is operationally viable, the trial period will not be treated 
as a permanent change.  

 
8.3 Where the change is a temporary, time limited, change the employee will automatically 

revert back to their original working arrangements at the end of the temporary period.  
 
8.4 Where the flexible working request will result in a change to the employee’s contracted 

working hours, whether temporary or permanent, a Change of Conditions form must be 
completed, so that budgets may be adjusted accordingly and a revised contract of 
employment created. 

 
8.5 Home working requests 
 
8.5.1 Where a request for a contractual right to work from home is received (as opposed to ad 

hoc working from home arrangements), the Service Manager and Chief Officer will consider 
the operational impact of the request and will liaise with ICT to discuss any issues relating 
to the provision of IT facilities.  

 
8.5.2 Where a request for a contractual right to work from home is agreed, this should be 

reviewed on an annual basis. It is recognised that future changes to structural or 
operational arrangements across the Council or the Service could result in home working 
arrangements being amended or ceasing. Where this is necessary, and after discussion 
with the employee, contractual notice would be served.  

 
8.5.3 If, for any reason, it is not possible for staff to work from home, due to an IT issue or some 

other unforeseen event, the home working arrangement will temporarily cease until such 
time as the matter has been resolved.  

Page 73



5 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

9.0 If the Chief Officer partially accepts the request 
 
9.1 In some circumstances the Chief Officer may be able to agree some, but not all, aspects of 

the employee’s request. In many cases, where the original request cannot be 
accommodated it may be possible for a compromise to be agreed and subsequently 
actioned. 

 
9.2  The employee still has the right to appeal against the Chief Officer’s decision, if their 

request is only partially upheld.  
 
9.3 Where the employee requests a reduction in working commitment, the Chief Officer may 

agree the request subject to the need to fill the remaining hours of the post. In such 
instances there is likely to be a delay caused by the need to recruit, before the revised 
working arrangement can be put into practice. Where this is the case the Chief Officer must 
explain their decision in writing and advise the employee that they may exercise their right 
to appeal against the delay should they wish. 

 
 
10.0 If the Chief Officer rejects the request 
 
10.1 If the Chief Officer considers that there are business reasons for rejecting the request, they 

will outline those to the employee. The decision can be provided verbally and followed up in 
writing, or provided solely in writing. The employee will receive written confirmation of the 
decision, setting out the reasons for declining the request, within 10 working days of the 
date of the meeting. The letter will also set out the right of appeal. 

 
10.2 Reasons for declining a request must be based on one or more of a number of legally 

specified grounds, these are: 
 

• the burden of additional costs; 
• detrimental effect to meet customer demand;  
• inability to reorganise work among existing staff; 
• inability to recruit additional staff; 
• detrimental impact on quality; 
• detrimental impact on performance; 
• insufficiency of work during the periods the employee proposes to work; or 
• planned structural changes. 

 
 

11.0 Trial periods 
 
11.1 In some cases the Chief Officer may decide to reserve their decision pending a trial period, 

to ascertain if the requested change is workable for both parties.   

11.2 The trial period should be long enough to allow the likely effects of the changed working 
 pattern on the business to be established. The length of a trial period will vary depending 
 upon the nature of the flexible working request and the type of work that the employee 
 normally undertakes. In most cases a trial period of 3 months should be sufficient.  

11.3 A trial period can be beneficial for both sides, especially where there is some doubt as to 
 the viability of the working arrangements requested by the employee. It can give both the 
 Chief Officer and the employee an opportunity to review how the new arrangements work in 
 practice and whether they are likely to create any practical difficulties for the service or the 
 Council as a whole. 

  

Page 74



6 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

11.4 Arranging a trial period 

11.4.1 If the Chief Officer agrees to a trial period, it is very important that the letter to confirm the 
 trial period clearly states that changes to the employee's terms of employment have been 
 agreed for a trial period only.  If this is not clear, the employee will, by default, have the 
 right to regard the changed terms of employment as a permanent variation to his or her 
 contract. The letter should also explain that the trial period can be cut short if there 
 are concerns over the changed working arrangements. The Chief Officer should seek 
 advice from HR with regard to the content of the letter to confirm a trial period. 

11.4.2  Where the trial period will result in a change to the employee’s contracted working hours, a 
Change of Conditions form must be completed, so that budgets may be adjusted 
accordingly and a revised contract of employment created confirming the temporary 
variation to the contract during the trial period.  

   
11.5 Changes/early termination during the trial period 
 
11.5.1  If for any reason, during the trial period it is clear that the arrangement is not working, either 

side may request a meeting to review the working arrangements at any point during the trial 
period.  It is not in the interest of either party to delay an open discussion about any issues 
causing concern and to attempt to resolve them.  

 
11.5.2 If either party is finding the new working arrangements unworkable, the aim will be to reach 

a new flexible working arrangement that is suitable to all parties. Where a new arrangement 
is agreed, both sides may wish to agree to a further trial period, which should not exceed 3 
months. For practical reasons it may be necessary to agree to a shorter timescale to trial 
the revised arrangements, so that the trial period is not overly extended.  

 
11.5.3 If it is not possible to agree to a new working arrangement, during the trial period, the Chief 

Officer will, in liaison with HR, write to the employee to advise them that the trial period will 
cease. Since the employee will have been fully aware that the trial period can be ended 
early, it is not a requirement to give the employee notice of this decision. However, from a 
practical point of view it may be helpful to the employee to give them a weeks’ notice of the 
decision to end the trial period.  

 
11.5.4 Where a trial period is cut short this is in effect a decision to refuse a request for flexible 

working. The Chief Officer must therefore advise the employee in writing of the decision 
and inform the employee of their right of appeal against this decision.  

 
11.6 End of trial period review  
 
11.6.1 Towards the end of the trial period, the Chief Officer and Service Manager will meet with 

the employee to discuss the success, or otherwise, of the new working arrangements. 
 
11.6.2 If the new arrangements are considered to be successful, the change will become 

permanent from that point.  The Chief Officer in liaison with HR should write to the 
employee to advise them of their decision. A Change of Conditions form must be 
completed so that the permanent change can be formally actioned. 

 
11.6.3 Alternatively the Chief Officer may decide, for business reasons, that the flexible working 

arrangements are not workable and will advise the employee of this in the meeting. If any 
other options are available these can be explored at this point. If no other options are 
available then the employee’s working arrangements will revert to those in place under 
his/her contract of employment.  This decision and the employee’s right of appeal will be 
confirmed in writing within 5 working days of the meeting. 

 
 

Page 75



7 
G:Master Policies/Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15 

12.0 Right of Appeal 
 
12.1 Employees wishing to appeal against a Chief Officer’s decision to reject their application for 

flexible working arrangements should do so by writing to the HR & OD Manager, stating 
their grounds for appeal, within 10 working days of receiving written notification of the 
rejection of their request. 

 
12.2 In line with the ACAS guidance, appeals will be considered if: 
 

• there is new information that was not available to the Chief Officer at the time they 
made their original decision, or  
 

• the employee thinks the application was not handled reasonably in line with the 
Council’s policy. 

 
12.3 Wherever possible the Council’s Chief Executive will hear appeals within 15 working days 

of the HR & OD Manager being informed in writing that the employee wishes to appeal. If it 
is not possible to convene a meeting with the Chief Executive within 15 working days, an 
extension of time may be agreed between the Council and employee. In these 
circumstances, the HR & OD Manager will write to the employee, specifying why the 
extension is required and a date when the appeal will be held. 

 
12.4 The employee will have the right to be accompanied at the appeal hearing by either a work 

colleague or trade union representative. 
 
12.5 The adviser to the Chief Executive (normally the HR & OD Manager or his/her nominee) will 

write to the employee within 5 working days of the appeal hearing to notify the employee 
of the Chief Executive’s decision. 

 
12.6 If the Chief Executive upholds the appeal the Chief Officer will be requested to reconsider 

the original request. 
 
12.7  If the Chief Executive dismisses the appeal the notification from the Chief Executive will 

state the grounds for the decision and contain a sufficient explanation as to why those 
grounds apply.  There is no further right of appeal. 

 
 
13.0 Review 
 
 This policy and procedure will be reviewed two years after implementation or earlier in the 

event of changes in legislation. 

Page 76



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

 
 

Job Grading, Regrading and Appeals Procedure 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 This procedure describes the arrangements for the evaluation of new and changed posts* 

and for assessing regrading applications. 
 
*Re-evaluations will only be undertaken where the changes to the job description are 
significant. 
 

1.2 This procedure will apply to all employees of the Council whose terms and conditions of 
service are determined by the NJC for Local Government Services (the Green Book). 
 

1.3 All evaluations will be undertaken by the Human Resources (HR) staff fully trained in the 
use of the GLPC computerised job evaluation scheme. 
 

1.4 This procedure provides a structured approach for the evaluation of posts across all Council 
Services. It is expected that the relevant Chief Officer and Manager, will critically evaluate 
any request that suggests that a post has change significantly to justify a Job Evaluation 
Review. It is expected that this critical review will consider the “Why” and “How”. 
 

2. Procedure for grading of new or changed posts 
 

2.1 Prior to the submission and approval of a report containing staffing implications, it is 
essential that a Job Description and supporting evidence for each new or changed post is 
prepared and submitted to HR who will consider the documentation and discuss the details 
with the Chief Officer and Manager. In the case of a changed post, the discussion will also 
include the postholder(s) if the post is filled.  The post will be evaluated by HR using the 
computerised job evaluation scheme and its associated locally agreed conventions. 
 

2.2 Following the evaluation, HR will inform the Manager concerned (and the employee(s) if the 
post is filled) of the outcome.  The Manager will prepare a report, normally on a Change of 
Conditions form (the re-evaluation has resulted in a change of grade).     
 

2.3 The recommendations within the Change of Conditions form will be considered by the 
appropriate officers.   
 

2.4 It may be that the evaluation of a post takes place as part of a service restructure.  In 
considering the proposals submitted by Managers/Chief Officer, the HR Team will assess if 
the proposals are likely to impact on any existing evaluation. 
 

2.5 If the changes that are proposed impact on the evaluation of a post held by an existing 
employee, then this information will be set out in the restructuring report and form part of the 
consultation process with those employees affected by the restructure.  
 

 
3. Procedure for regrading applications generated by the postholder  

 
3.1 Applications must be submitted on the appropriate form – Regrading Application Form. The 

form must also be completed by the Service Manager and Chief Officer before it is submitted to 
HR. 
 

Page 77



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

3.2 Regrading applications will only be accepted where there is a significant change to the job.   
 

3.3 The Manager must confirm that the description of the duties and responsibilities and that the 
effective date claimed in the application is accurate.  If there is disagreement this must be 
resolved before the application is submitted for evaluation 
 

3.4 If the Manager and Applicant(s) cannot agree the matter should be referred to the relevant 
Chief Officer who should seek advice from HR.   
 

3.5 The Applicant(s) must send the completed Regrading Application Form and copy of the job 
description to HR. 
 

3.6 The HR Team will:- 
 

• Acknowledge receipt of the application 
• Clarify any issues with the postholder(s) and line manager where necessary 
• Evaluate the post 
• Inform the Chief Officer and Service Manager concerned of the outcome 
• Write to the Applicant setting out the decision including the rationale and the right of 

appeal 
• If the grade is changed a report (on a Change of Conditions form) will be prepared by 

the appropriate Service Manager 
• The recommendations within the Change of Conditions form will be considered by the 

appropriate officers   
 

3.7 If approved, HR will write to the applicant advising them of the decision and of the date of 
implementation.  This will normally be the date of the application unless an earlier date is 
claimed, which can be substantiated by supporting evidence. 
 

4. Right of Appeal 
 

4.1 Employees whose job has changed and employees who submit a regrading application will 
have a right of appeal to the Job Evaluation (JE) Appeals Panel if they are dissatisfied with the 
job evaluation and can demonstrate that one of the grounds for appeal is satisfied.   
 

5. Grounds for Appeal 
 

5.1 An employee who is dissatisfied with their job evaluation has the right of appeal on one or more 
of the following grounds: 
 

• The salary of the post has been reduced 
 

• There has been a loss of incremental progression  
 

• More responsibility within the post has not been recognised 
 

6. The Appeal Procedure 
 

6.1 To exercise this right, the employee(s) must appeal in writing to the HR & OD Manager, on the 
Regrading Appeal form, within 10 working days of receipt of written notification of the grade.   
 

6.2 On receipt of the Regrading Appeals Form, the HR & OD (or appointed Deputy) will gather all 
the information required by the JE Appeals Panel. 
 

6.3 The appeal will be considered by the JE Appeals Panel.  The Panel will be composed of: 
 
• The Chief Executive 
• An advisor from a recognised Trade Union 
• An advisor from Human Resources.  

Page 78



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

 
The Trade Union advisor must be from a different Trade Union from that of the appellant. 
 

6.4 A meeting of the JE Appeals Panel will normally be convened within 20 working days of receipt 
of the appeal. 
 

6.5 The HR representative who evaluated the job will normally be the HR Advisor to the JE 
Appeals Panel. Their role will be to: 
 
• Set out the grounds for appeal have been met 
• Explain the rationale behind any decisions 
• Provide information and advice on the GLPC Job Evaluation scheme. 

 
6.6 If the panel is not satisfied that the grounds for appeal have been met, the appeal will be 

rejected and appellant will be advised, giving reasons for the rejection. 
 

6.7 The appellant has the right to attend and present their case to the JE Appeals Panel and be 
accompanied by a Trade Union representative or work colleague of their choice.  A 
management representative may also be present.    
 

6.8 After presenting the case the employee, their representative and the management 
representative (if appropriate) will leave the room to allow the JE Appeals Panel to consider 
their decision in private. 
 

6.9 If information is missing, or if new information is forthcoming, or there has been a 
misapplication of the job evaluation scheme, any new information will be entered into the 
software by the HR representative for re-evaluation of the factor/s concerned. 
 
This could change the original level of the factor (which could go up as well as down) or could 
confirm the evaluated factor level. 
 

6.10 The Chief Executive will have the determining vote.  The decision of the Panel is final and there 
is no further right of appeal. 
 

7. Action Following the Appeal Hearing 
 

7.1 The appellant, Chief Officer and Service Manager will be notified by HR of the outcome of their 
appeal within 5 working days of the date of the meeting.  Details of any changes to the factor 
levels and total score will be provided, together with confirmation of whether the amendments 
have resulted in a change to the grade of the job. 
 

7.2 Successful appeals will be backdated to the date of the regrading application (unless an earlier 
date is claimed which is supported by evidence) or, in the case of a changed job, the date of 
the appointment to the post. 
 

7.3 If an appeal against a grade involves a group of employees, wherever possible agreement 
should be reached between the employees in the following areas:- 
 

• The content of the appeal 
• Nomination of an employee to attend the appeal panel on behalf of the group 
 

8. Review 
 

8.1 The functions of the JE Appeals Panel will be reviewed annually. The forum for the review will 
be the Joint Consultative Committee. 

Page 79



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

  

REGRADING APPLICATION FORM 
 

How to complete the form 
 
General Guidance 
 
Before you begin to complete the Grading/Regrading Appeal Form you should read the 
guidance notes below.  If you are a trade union member you may wish to discuss your appeal 
and the completion of the Appeal Form with your trade union representative.   
 
Grounds for Appeal 
 
The following are grounds for appeal: 
 

• The salary of the post has been reduced 
 

• There has been a loss of incremental progression  
 

• More responsibility within the post has not been recognised 
 

Making an Appeal 
 
You will need to complete the appeal form and send it to HR & OD Manager within 10 working 
days of receipt of written notification of the grade. 
 
What will happen after that is clearly laid out in the Grading, Regrading and Appeals 
Procedure.  

Page 80



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

REGRADING APPEAL FORM  
 

To be completed by the job holder, and returned to the HR & OD Manager within 10 working 
days of receiving written notification of the grade. 
 

Employee Name:  

Post No:  

Job Title:  

Service Area:  

Job Evaluation Points:  Grade:  

Type of Appeal:    Individual Appeal  /  Group Appeal    (Delete as Appropriate) 

Please indicate the Grounds for Appeal  (Please tick) 

The salary of the post has been reduced                                    ���� 
There has been a loss of incremental progression                        ���� 
More responsibility within the post has not been recognised          ���� 

Service Manager comments: 

 

Name; ______________________  Signature: _______________________ Date : _______________ 

Chief Officer comments: 

 

Name; ______________________  Signature: _______________________ Date : _______________ 

 

For Office Use only    

 
Date appeal lodged: 

  
Date received in HR 
 

 

 

Page 81



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

 
 
The information which I request is considered as part of the Appeal is: 
(You may submit additional documents if required, however salary information relating to similar posts within other 
organisations will not be considered by the Appeals Panel) 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Name: _____________________________Signature: ______________________ 
 
Date: __________________________ 
 
 
For office use only 

Page 82



Approved by Personnel Committee 12 April 2011 
Draft Update – 3 February 2014 

Grading Appeals Panel comments and outcome 
 

Grading Appeals Panel comments and outcome 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:  ___________________________________  Date: ______________ 
                                          (Chair of the JE Appeals Panel ) 

 

Signed: ___________________________________ Date: _______________ 
                                             (Trade Union Advisor) 

 

Signed: ___________________________________ Date: _______________ 
                                                      (HR Advisor) 

 
 

Page 83



 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE   
 
 
RECRUITMENT FOR ON-CALL FIRE-FIGHTERS AT 

LANCASTER FIRE STATION 
03 FEBRUARY 2015 

 
REPORT OF THE HR AND OD MANAGER 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider a request from Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service for support with their 
recruitment of on-call fire-fighters. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Personnel Committee considers the request received from 

Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 A request has been received from the Service Delivery Manager, Lancashire 

Fire and Rescue Services (LFRS), for the City Council, as a large employer in 
the District, to support LFRS with their recruitment of on-call fire-fighters in 
Lancaster.  The criteria for which is that retained fire-fighters live or work 
within approximately a five minute distance from the fire station. 
 

1.2 LFRS have advised that they have secured a £2.4 million funding bid for a 
new fire station in Lancaster and one of the fire appliances will be crewed by 
on-call fire-fighters. 
 

1.3 The Assistant Chief Fire Officer attended Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
at its meeting on the 11 June 2014 as the request of the Committee to 
discuss the proposed reduction in Lancaster Fire Station capacity.   
 

1.4 Following the meeting, at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, the Chief Executive wrote to the Assistant Chief Fire Officer, 
expressing the Committee’s concerns at the proposals.  A copy of that letter 
and the reply from the Chairman of the Lancashire Fire Authority are attached 
at Appendix A. 
 

1.5 The following Notice on Motion to Council was considered by full Council at 
its meeting on the 22 October 2014 
 

Agenda Item 8 Page 84



“This Council notes with regret the decision by Lancashire Combined Fire 
Authority (CFA) to reduce cover at Lancaster Fire Station from two full time 
appliances to one full time appliance with the other to be staffed by retained 
(part time) crews with an up to 5 minute slower response time.  

  
This Council believes that this cut in services is a direct result of the 
Government's cut to the Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service budget. The 
loss of this full time appliance and others in Lancashire, is inevitable unless 
the funding cuts are reversed.” 
 

1.6 Council resolved to: 
 

  
1. To lobby local Members of Parliament and the Government to ask for 

the funding cuts to be reversed. 
 

2. To join with other Lancashire Councils in collaboration with the 
Lancashire CFA to campaign for adequate funding for Lancashire Fire 
and Rescue Service. 

 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 If Personnel Committee are minded to agree to the request to support LRFS 

in their recruitment drive for retained fire-fighters, internal communication 
methods will be used, such as providing staff with leaflets and access to 
posters and using the intranet.   

 
3.0 Implication as an employer  
 
3.1 The Council applies all the statutory obligations in relation to time off work for 
 public duties. 

3.2 Employees in the Army Reserves or other reserve forces have certain 
 protections under employment law if they’re called up for service. Employers 
 of reservists also have particular rights and obligations in this situation – eg 
 they may be able to claim financial assistance or apply for an exemption. 

3.3 The duties of an On-call Fire-fighter are not covered by any statutory 
arrangements, therefore an officer’s external (other) employment in a role of 
“On-call Fire-fighter” would be treated in the same way as any other external/ 
additional employment. 

3.4 The Council’s Code of Conduct, Part 7 - Codes and Protocols, Officers’ Code 
of Conduct,  Para 7 Outside Commitments (Appendix B) defines the 
boundaries within which outside commitments are managed. 

3.5 Like any employment, care would have to be taken to ensure that any 
external obligations to the role of “On-call Fire-fighter” did not conflict with the 
duties of an Officer of the Council.  

3.6 If the Personnel Committee were minded to support the recruitment drive by 
LFRS, it is not anticipated that this would place a strain on Council resources. 
However, given that the Council may be seen as actively promoting these 
roles, there may be an expectation amongst officers that the Council in some 

Page 85



way endorses employment in such posts, without further consideration of the 
potential impact on Council services or regard for the provisions set out in the 
Officer Code of Conduct. These issues can be addressed by proper 
promotion of vacancies and clear communication between Lancaster City 
Council and LFRS. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 
 
Impact assessment is covered in the report. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no legal implications directly arising from this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  Services would be required 
to manage any resource implications arising from within existing budgets. 
 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Human Resources: 
The HR & OD Manager is the author of the report. The HR implications are set out in the 
body of the report. 
 
Information Services: 
N/A 
 
Property: 
N/A 
 
Open Spaces: 
N/A 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 
 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
In the absence of the Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted 
and has no observations to make on this report. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 

Contact Officer: HR and OD Manager 
Telephone:  01524 582076 
E-mail: shampson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: CE/SH/ES/Cttees/Personnel – 1. 

Page 86



 

Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93


	Agenda
	5 Corporate Health and Safety Arrangements and Members' Responsibilities
	Health and Safety Appendix 1
	Health and Safety Appendix 2

	6 Officer Employment Procedure Rules
	council040315employmentrules.doc
	Part 4 Section 6 - OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES.doc

	7 Human Resources Policy Development and Review
	Shared Parental Leave Policy  DRAFT 03.02.15.doc
	Probation Policy DRAFT 03.02.15.doc
	Early Termination of Employment Policy  DRAFT 03.02.15.doc
	Flexible Working (Right to Request) DRAFT JCC 03.02.15
	Job Grading Regrading and Appeals Procedure Document Review (2) - 3 February 2015

	8 Recruitment for On-call Fire-fighters at Lancaster Fire Station
	1b. Appendix A.pdf


